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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Management to consider studying the 
dichotomy between the archaeological discipline on cultural resources and the knowledge 
and expertise of tribal elders and tribal historic preservation officers to educate local, state, 
and federal agencies and the public; and the facilitation of effective consultation and 
cooperation for historic and prehistoric site identification and registration and the betterment 
of North Dakota and its citizens. 
 

Minutes:                                                 3 Attachments 

 
Chair Unruh: Opened the public hearing. All members were present.  
 
Senator Joan Heckaman District 23, introduced the resolution, please see attachment 
#1. (1:14-3:40). Dr. Longie will talk about how Tribal Historic Preservation Officers select 
historic sites and how that is different from the state or the national historical societies.  
 
Senator Richard Marcellais, District 9 (4:45-6:10) Testified in support, please see 
attachment #2. 
 
Scott Davis, Executive Director, North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission (6:40-11:25) 
Testified in support. In light of my work, with the partnerships I’ve created, with the tribes 
and government agencies; we have a strong working relationship. We’ve covered a wide 
array of issues over the years, most pressing is the reinternment committee; this is Indian 
country, from time to time a farmer or a construction firm finds remains, by state law we are 
required to go through a process, one that involves a tribe immediately within notice. A study 
would show that we can take this a step further. One area that relates is the broad education, 
there is a fine balance, Dr. Longie will talk about the science and the history of our culture. 
Disclosing some of those sites is very sensitive to our people, when you think about looting 
and the black market for artifacts; we have federal law that protects us, but looting happens. 
Not only to the grave sites, but to sacred sites as well, I’m taking this issue seriously, these 
are our relatives, it’s sacred to me. To treat this issue with respect and diplomacy, to have a 
good mindset about protecting those areas is important. I was adamant with industry about 
more steps, making sure we have tribal monitors making sure these sites aren’t disturbed. I 
think we’re achieving that, making sure our cultural resources are protected. An example, the 
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Emmons County wind farm, there was a good joint tribal-industry partnership. A study could 
help, I’m not going to fault my colleagues, they do a tremendous job, a tough job. Fern and 
Jeannie have done well working with the tribes, we have hiccups, but we find a way to come 
to an understanding.  
 
Vice-Chair Kreun: As you go through process, can we move some of those sites, or do they 
have to stay at that location? 
 
Scott Davis: We prefer to not disturb them at all, but when it happens, that relationship 
between the tribes and industry, when they are disturbed, it’s a sacred time. You have to 
reinter those human remains, we’ve been able to first identify what tribe they were from, 
North Dakota has many tribes, from there the remains are taken for reburial. We had one this 
summer, a grave robbery, a looting, it was investigated by DCI and identified as a 
Dakota/Lakota Sioux remains, the remains were returned to the tribe. That’s the process of 
human remains.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Are there artifacts found with remains? To help you identify tribal 
connection? 
 
Scott Davis:  Dr. Longie would be better suited to answer that.  
 
Dr. Erich Longie, Spirit Lake Tribe (14:30-23:10) Testified in support. To add on to the 
previous speakers, we have come a long way in Indian tribal relations. I’ve been a THPO 
(Tribal Historic Protection Officer) for 5 years. We have a long way to go. We Dakota are very 
spiritual people. There is no separation of church and state, to demonstrate the difference, 
everything has a spirit, everything is sacred. An archeologist once said, frustrated, we go out 
in the field and every rock is sacred. We’ve been here a long time, we left a lot of stuff, built 
a lot of stuff. The other thing we believe is the spirit world is close, we honor our ancestors, 
we don’t want to disrespect them, we don’t want to disturb their place of rest, often times they 
come back. We don’t want those places disturbed. Stone is sacred to us, we treat it the way 
you would treat a cathedral, we don’t want it bulldozed over. This resolution will continue on 
the good work, and make it go one step further, and start recognizing the spiritual aspect of 
our belief system, and recognizing that our elders, we have a knowledge that nobody else 
has. The work that we have done with federal agencies could be expanded into this area. It’s 
very disheartening when you work with federal agencies and their consultants and we go out 
and find a burial and you know it’s going to get destroyed. We know the population is growing, 
we know there is progress, we know we can’t save every site. But we want to save as much 
as we can. To do that we need to sit down and find some common ground. Help us 
understand that burning desire to build, build, build. We will help you see why everything is 
sacred to us. Once we do that, we can find some common ground, save some sites. I stand 
before you talking about Dakota spirituality, but I’m also a doctor in education, I not only walk 
your path, but I walk it better than most Indians. I march to your drum, but in our heart we are 
Dakota, our ancient beliefs are there, they influence everything we do. Yes, I have a degree, 
but I have an ancestor guiding me as well. We are the fastest growing population in North 
Dakota, higher than 6%. We are influencing elections, we look forward to the day where our 
grandchildren and your grandchildren can sit across from each other and not have the same 
arguments that we have today. This resolution will pave the path; it will affect my 
granddaughters.  
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Representative Ruth Buffalo, District 27 (23:20-27:50) Testified in favor. This resolution 
is very important, not only the education component, but thinking 7 generations ahead. I 
wanted to share an experience I had. I attended two educational sessions at the United 
Tribes Technical College, these sessions talked about cultural knowledge. They also touched 
on the importance of sacred sites. Growing up in Mandaree, we used to take annual trips to 
the medicine hole in the Killdeer Mountains. We had that oral history, further north of my 
mom’s house, we used to see rocks in circles, we were told they were teepee rings, but they 
were more than that. I just recently learned this. I’ve always known that sacred sites were 
special, but it wasn’t until attending these educational sessions and being an indigenous 
woman, to have learned that within the past two months. Sacred sites are special, yes, but 
I’ve also learned the stories behind why we need to protect those sites. Back when tribal 
people were put on reservations, they were prohibited from going to certain areas or locations 
that were deemed significant for prayer purposes. That provided a disconnect, not being able 
to freely practice their spirituality. I’m a little leery going into great detail, because that might 
not be reciprocated or respected, there’s so much in saving these sites, they provide a lifeline 
to our future generations and the sustainability our culture. I say that with caution, because 
not everybody has a good heart, and they could take that information and find those sites 
and demolish them. I want to share the importance of education, it’s long overdue. These 
sites are more than tourist stops, they are actually very ancient and they are needed to 
sustain future generations.  
 
Calvin Grinnell, Historian, Tribal Historic Preservation Officer, Mandan Hidatsa Arikara 
Nation (28:05-31:20) Testified in support, please see attachment #3.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Your land is a hotbed for oil, how do you get along with oil companies 
when it comes to preservation and discovery of possible sites? 
 
Calvin Grinnell: I served as a cultural monitor for a site north of Dunn Center, the well pad 
right in the middle of a ridge, the only way to get to the ridge was a path in the middle of a 
bison rendering site; we talked about it, and allowed archeologists to survey and take studies, 
dig a few pits. After that was done, we put fill over it, in that way, what was left stayed in the 
ground. We used that as the road to access that well pad. That’s a way to mitigate.  
 
Carel Two-Eagle, member of Standing Rock, testified in support (33:55-38:00) Standing 
Rock is my reservation, I’m a spiritual guide. I was raised in two cultures. For a long time, 
there was a view in the majority culture that we are living in teepees and wigwams, and we 
don’t understand English, or money, or much of anything. That has finally begun to change.  
In our creation stories, before there was time, when the holy spirit began to wonder what it 
was, created the rock which became our grandmother, the earth. This means that everything 
is in some way related. We need to continue to improve the relationship, and get rid of the 
view that we’re living in the 1800s. A while ago, I was asked to make a star quilt for a 
fundraiser; I made a magnificent quilt, with beadwork. We packed it up and shipped it out, 
the appraiser said this couldn’t have been made by a real Indian, the fabric is too fine, the 
colors too bright, they sold the quilt, but broke our contract. My mother was so mad she 
sharpened hew scalping knife; those are our artifacts. How, in this day and age, can people 
be so stupid about what’s going on right here. We need to expand on the improvements in 
the view of people with degrees in archeology, that we know what we are talking about. We 
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find it counterproductive to have to go back to the courts for a ruling, but that seems to be 
the only place to go when times get tough.  
 
No opposing testimony.  
 
Fern Swenson (38:35-) Director of Archaeology and Historic Preservation Division, 
State Historical Society North Dakota. Provided neutral testimony. I am here to provide 
information about what the State Historical Society does and how we have worked with the 
tribes in the past, how we want to continue to work productively and respectfully. We work 
very closely with Scott Davis, he provides us guidance, and connects us with individuals that 
he thinks we should work with. He also coordinates the nominations for the Native American 
Hall of Honors at the State Historical Society. That was important when we did the expansion, 
to recognize contributions of Native Americans today as well as back in history. That has 
been positive for the state. The Innovation and Inspiration gallery at the Historical Society, 
we worked with an advisory group of Native Americans of each of the reservations, so that 
we made sure we addressed things important to the tribes. We received comments about 
how important the native voice was, their languages; we have native Americans speaking, in 
those exhibits as well as give stories, in listening devices. We also conduct oral interviews, 
we have specifically conducted several with the Mandan Hidatsa and Arikara Nation, in 
producing People of the Upper Missouri, which goes from present day back to AD 1200. 
Those elders that we interviewed have passed since those interviews took place. Just having 
those is important. Those two things have been highlights, I trained in anthropology, 
specializing in archeology. We oversee the national register process, under the National Park 
Service we have had elders request that we prepare a nomination for the Independence 
Church near Mandaree, we worked closely with Tilly and Reba Walker, that was a productive 
working relationship.  
We’ve managed several Mandan Hidatsa Arikara sites as well as a couple of Dakota sites, 
we work closely with tribal governments. Double Ditch was slumping into the river; we 
appreciate your support in providing funding to save that. We work very closely with Calvin 
Grinnell and the Tribal Historic Preservation Office regarding the recovery of several burials, 
198 burials, that’s how critical it was to stabilize that site and those have been reinterred. 
Currently we are working on developing better interpretation at White Stone State Historic 
Site, we are working very closely with Standing Rock as well as Sisseton Wahpeton in making 
sure we represent the native voice in interpretive signs at that site. Hopefully some of the 
interpretation will go up this summer, and more development could happen at that site, based 
on coordination with people. Several people have mentioned burial sites, as the State 
Historical Society, under the century code, we worked closely with Scott Davis and North 
Dakota Tribal Reinternment Committee, so any time human remains are found on state or 
private property, we are involved, the Sheriff’s department gets involved, and the 
reinternment committee. We are concerned with the burials to make sure that they are 
handled respectfully. We are the State Historic Preservation Office, we provide technical 
assistance to federal agencies, but we also manage the files that are critical in the review 
process in any federal undertaking. Any time something occurs on federal land or federal 
money is involved, or federal permitting; those agencies come to our office to look at the 
geographic information system, which gives the location of recorded sites in North Dakota. 
Currently 8% of North Dakota has been surveyed, it is a sample, we are the repository. In 
the geographic information system, we have several layers, archeological sites, historic sites, 
architectural sites, and within the past 8 years, we’ve developed cultural heritage forms, at 
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the request of some tribes. We control access to much of that data. The cultural heritage 
forms enable individuals to record our sites that may not be recognized as archeological 
sites, but are important to tribal members. There is a process in place where those sites are 
recorded. Right now we have about 400 of those cultural heritage forms. The tribal members 
that record those; we are far more flexible in recording those as to how much information is 
presented, it is up to the tribal members, what they want to present. The only thing we require 
is legal location. Without legal location we can’t track anything. We have many more 
requirements for the other types of forms. If there are additional changes the tribes would 
like to see, we are open to having those conversations. Dr. Longie was visiting us last week, 
we provided information regarding all of Spirit Lake, so that he would have access to that 
data. We also provide file searches for MHA, and are willing to provide that information to 
other tribes. Anytime we are requested to go out to any of the reservations or look at any 
sites, we are happy to do that. It provides us further information as well. Any process could 
be improved, but I do think that we do have processes and procedures in place. We are trying 
to do our best to protect those resources. We have to follow the century code as well as 
federal regulations; it’s a balancing act. Our background with working with elders, has been 
very important and rewarding to us and the state of North Dakota. I feel honored to have the 
opportunity.  
 
Chair Unruh: Having dealt with your office and the tribal offices, I agree, it is an honor. 
 
Vice-Chair Kreun: We look at these situations; how do we deal with other cultures when we 
run across situations like that? 
 
Fern Swenson: We record those, whether they are building, or ruins, or homestead; those 
are recorded on a historic archeological form, or an architectural form. Any site could be 
recorded on multiple forms. If it has a building and a depression that relates to a house, and 
also archeological site, and a possible traditional cultural property; it could be recorded on all 
four forms.   
 
Vice-Chair Kreun: Recorded, and then what happens? 
 
Fern Swenson: If there is a federal undertaking, like a road or pipeline, then that site, if it’s 
previously recorded, then it would pop up that something exists in that area. It doesn’t mean 
that everything is preserved. We have an official process regarding why is it significant, is it 
due to a broad pattern in history, or is it because of an important person? Is it because of the 
architecture, or potential to yield important archeological information? It depends on the 
integrity of site for resources, there is a process in place; it’s just not random.  
 
Chair Unruh: Closed the public hearing. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Management to consider studying the 
dichotomy between the archaeological discipline on cultural resources and the knowledge 
and expertise of tribal elders and tribal historic preservation officers to educate local, state, 
and federal agencies and the public; and the facilitation of effective consultation and 
cooperation for historic and prehistoric site identification and registration and the betterment 
of North Dakota and its citizens. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No attachments  

 
Chair Unruh: Opened committee work. 
  
Senator Piepkorn: I move we do pass. 
 
Chair Unruh: The motion fails for lack of a second. 
 
Senator Piepkorn: I believe I can call in the Senate minority leader to supply a second. 
 
Chair Unruh: That shouldn’t be necessary, if you make your motion again, I’m sure we can 
find a second. 
 
Senator Piepkorn: I move a Do Pass. 
 
Senator Roers: I second. 
 
Senator Piepkorn: We were trying to figure out where this study is going. The 
misunderstanding or disagreements between the tribal historic preservation officers and the 
state historical society, and not the federal government. Identifying these historical sites, it’s 
kind of an evolving definition, that’s what the study is trying to do, it’s trying to smooth out the 
process between the tribal historians and the state historical society.  
 
Chair Unruh: This is something I deal with frequently in my professional world. We as a coal 
mining company, disturb some historic and cultural historic sites. We’ve got a great 
relationship with the tribes, we’ve set aside a bunch of money in an education trust fund for 
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them to be able to continue to teach the members of their tribes their languages and it’s neat 
to participate in that. The Historical Society has a great structure set up, I’ve seen it work, 
I’ve seen the tribal monitors in the field when we’re taking a look at these sites, and I wasn’t 
convinced that there was something broken that needed to be fixed. I felt like Ms. Swenson 
was reiterating that things work well as they are structured now. I don’t think we are missing 
anything right now, as someone who has participated in that state action part of a project; 
when sites are disturbed they get mitigated. It is a thorough process, and one that’s 
educational along the way, not just because of the trust funds, but for me personally as well.  
 
A roll call vote was taken. 
Motion fails 1-5-0. 
 
Senator Cook:  I move a Do Not Pass. 
Senator Roers: I second. 
 
A roll call vote was taken. 
Motion passes 5-1-0. 
 
Chair Unruh will carry. 



Date: __ 3_/i_J __ 
Roll C all Vote#:---'----

2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOT

� BILURESOLUTION NO. QI] 

Senate Energy and Natural Resources 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

[X Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By _ _.Se .......... u ..... 'J ....... ,_---le __ :q2=-t--'h1'---D�f Jt_.,__ Seconded By 

Senators 
Senator Jessica Unruh 
Senator Curt Kreun 
Senator Donald Schaible 
Senator DwiQht Cook 
Senator Jim Roers 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) 

Floor Assignment 

Yes 

D 

No 
)< 
X 

No 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Senators 
Senator Merrill Piepkorn 

Yes No 

, 



Date: __ ].;..../i ...... [ __ 
Roll C all Vote#: -----'k"'""'---

2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTE

� BILURESOLUTION NO. Q/ 'J 

Senate Energy and Natural Resources 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass � Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By __ J._'Uf..;....:_._e,o--= __ 
A_r ___ Seconded By 

Senators Yes No Senators 
Senator Jessica Unruh )(' Senator Merrill Piepkorn 
Senator Curt Kreun 
Senator Donald Schaible 
Senator Dwight Cook 
Senator Jim Roers 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) 

Floor Assignment 

No 

0 

Unruh 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

1 

Yes No 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 1, 2019 10:54AM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_36_004 
Carrier: Unruh 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SCR 4017: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Sen. Unruh, Chairman) 

recommends DO NOT PASS (5 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
SCR 4017 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_36_004 



2019 HOUSE ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
 

SCR 4017 

  



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Energy and Natural Resources Committee 
Coteau A Room, State Capitol 

SB 4017 
3/15/2019 

33804 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk, Kathleen Davis  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
To consider studying the dichotomy between the archaeological discipline on cultural 
resources and the knowledge and expertise of tribal elders and tribal historic preservation 
officers           
to educate local, state, and federal agencies and the public;  
and the facilitation of effective consultation and cooperation for historic and prehistoric site 
identification and registration   and the betterment of North Dakota and its citizens. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8 

 
Chairman Porter: opened the hearing on SCR 4017.  
 
Sen. Joan Heckaman: introduced SCR 4017 and presented Attachment 1. 
 
Sen Marcellais:  presented Attachment 2. He also hand carried testimony Attachment 3, from Jeff 
Desjarlais Jr, Turtle Mountain Bank of Chippewa Indians THPO (Tribal historic Preservation Officer). 
 
Rep. Buffalo, Ft. Berthold Indian Reservation, a Mandaree, Fargo:   stands in support of this bill. 
 
11:42 
 
Scott Davis, ND Indian Affairs Council:  I am here in support of SCR 4017. I think this study is 
pretty important but requires some team work. In the interim in light of what happened 2 years ago, I 
took it upon myself to really reach out, in particular to industry on better practices when it comes to 
projects, either near or far away from tribal treaty lands. I’ve had those discussions in particular with 
Enbridge. When I’ve had those discussions I brought along my THPO from my tribe, Mr. John Eagle. 
We have been reaching out. No matter what happened 2 years ago of trying to educate industry, in 
this case, of best practices, I think we’ve been successful to a point. I use the large wind project down 
in Emmons County where they had on sight, our tribal THPO on site that whole summer. What a very 
good working relationship. There are significant findings down there. We as tribal members know 
that. The industry did a very good job of respecting and looking at those areas, making sure that 
those pads and areas were not impacting any of these cultural sites. It’s a start. It’s going to take time 
to continue that discussion. Part of this study can achieve that.   
 
I also think that when you look at sacred sites that could error (?) us, how can we protect those but 
have that balance of nondisclosure, keeping it private. When you have signs conflicting with our tribal 
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knowledge, there’s a very very sensitive part here what we’re willing to disclose to the general public. 
That has to be protected. I’m not sure how we do that and what type of system is established for that. 
If industry is going to come through with a project of some sort, and there’s a significant finding, how 
do we keep that area protected from looters and people who want to grab a shovel and see what’s 
out there. I think those are things we’re talking about. The other thing we worked on in the interim too 
was working with the PSC. I know the PSC has its process and brought the PSC to my first conference 
2 Januarys ago on strengthening tribal state relations. The big focus was not only treaties and treaty 
lands but also ______(a single word?) and the permitting process that PSC has to go through and 
how does that process work in unison with the SHIPO (SHIPA?), our tribal THPOs, how does that 
process work. That’s another area that’s ongoing. The other part is notifying all the tribes. We’ve 
achieved that. Anytime there’s a permit, on or near, statewide, the PSC does notify the tribal chair 
and the THPOs on those. We made sure that was covered as well.  
 
The other thing mentioned when you identify sacred sites on our registry, we’re in the midst of 
finalizing one south of Jamestown with Whitestone. That took some years of process of studying that. 
Quite honestly the Whitestone Massacre is to me, for my tribe, is like the Wounded Knee of ND. It is 
what it is, it happened. We’re working diligently to identify that and make sure that monument and 
right verbiage is the right stories told on that. This is another part of the study, this process that we’re 
looking at. Those are sensitive areas of history that need to be discussed, told and informed with our 
schools etc. These are somethings we hear the people behind me here talking about. I think this 
study can do some of this. I know how this works with the legislative process.  
 
For whatever reason, if it does not happen, we will continue to do it anyway. I think my friend, Ron 
Ness, and his industry, would be open to having some type of an education type of process with our 
THPOs, with industry of better practices of what we’re looking at. At the end of the day it’s all about 
relationships. With industry, your local sheriff, with the tribes, with PSC; without relationships and 
good dialogue and respect, none of these things will be protected. We’re working very hard to achieve 
that dialogue. Those are things we’ve been working on but again, this study could help some of these 
efforts.   
 
17:34 
 
Rep Heinert:  I’d like to talk about Sen. Heckaman’s circle of rocks she talked about. What do we do 
with the private landowner when something significant is on their land? 
 
Scott Davis:  that’s always been a question. That’s always been part of the how does the tribe access 
private property. How does that relationship begin?  It goes back to relationships. Educating people, 
the sheriff’s office, the local counties, Association of Counties. Certain sectors of our state that have 
associations is where we can start educating people. At the end of the day, it’s up to the private owner 
whether or not he or she or the family will allow the tribal member to come in and look at what’s there. 
In my discussions of what happened 2 years ago, people are aware of this, they’re conscious of this, 
aware of this, what do I need to do to protect this and see what’s out there and make sure it’s not 
disturbed. I think we’re getting to a better place.  
 
Chairman Porter: Inside of the whole legislative process, you seem to have boots on the ground and 
actually doing the work and getting it done. What are we going to study that you aren’t already doing?  
I would hate to think we get in the way. You are fully capable of bringing bill drafts through the 
governor’s office, through the Dept. of Indian Affairs to us if you find a place that lacks the law as 
you’re meeting with industry and private landowners. I’m lost in the aspect that it seems like 
everything that’s in here, you’ve already got your arms around and are way ahead of what we would 
ever be able to do.  
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Scott Davis:  I’m thankful for the bill sponsors for bringing this to a new level. In light of what 
happened 2 years ago and prior to that, we’ve been working on a lot of things. A good example is 
when a farmer or a rural project finds human remains. 9 out of 10 times they are our relatives. There’s 
a process to that, a law behind that. Tribes are notified in a day. We get to the site within a day or as 
soon as we can, identify through a process, what tribe those human remains belong to. The tribes 
take over from there and they return, have a ceremony and go from there. Again I think this study 
brings it to another level, a different level. I think it could tighten up some things I’ve been doing. I 
have a very short staff, our THPOs have a short staff. Our manpower is a challenge on my end. Again 
I think even without this study, I’m in full support of this study, but I feel confident some way, shape 
or form this work will continue. With this bill coming about, I think it’s elevated more awareness and 
need to get out. Now that I recognize how many more resources we have in this room to help push 
that, I think that’s a great thing. I think collectively we can do this. This is personal to me. It’s very 
sacred to me. Either way it’s going to happen. For you to support it puts more teeth behind it.   
 
The other idea I have Mr. Chairman is one of these bills will hopefully be in your lap in a week or so, 
is the tribal state tax interim committee.  Again it’s called taxation, it’s leadership, it’s a true 
government to government relationship with the leaders of your side, the House, majority and minority 
leadership, Senate side as well, the Governor, and Lt. Governor and all in between. That’s another 
venue too where a more leader to leader high level leadership can have a discussion or a study or if 
there’s going to be a stronger bill for the next interim on these issues could happen. We’re not just 
talking about the general public but leadership in general from government to government leadership 
perspective could be another way to study these important topics in the interim.  
 
Rep. Anderson: Is there a place you can go look to see what you’re actually looking for. I know when 
I go through hunting in a refuge over by J Clark Sayer Refuge, even on some farmland, we run into 
spots and wonder what was there at one time. Most of the time we just clean it up and move through 
it. I have no idea why there’s a pile of rocks or some other structure out there. Do you actually have 
a spot that you can look at that stuff?  I would hate to be rolling over somebody’s gravesite. But we 
have no way of knowing.  
 
Scott Davis:  I think the experts behind me will answer that. 
 
Jeani Borchert, Environmental and Transportation Service Division:  presented Attachment 4 in 
support of SCR 4017.  
 
Rep Bosch: in 2006, your program agreement developed and updated in 2006, does it need to be 
changed or are there areas that need to be looked at again? Does this study facilitate that?   
 
Jeani Borchert I think this study would enhance understanding of all the people we work with in the 
state as part of our process. Our programmatic agreement has to be updated every 5 years for 
Federal highway requirements. I think the tribes and DOT are pretty happy with how things have 
worked and are working in our consultation. But we do have issues with archeologists for example, 
that we work with in having the same understanding of the tribal knowledge. I think the tribes right to 
say this is a significant place, an important place to us. It might not be something an archeologist 
understands. We were taught when I was in school a long time ago, pretty much tribal knowledge 
was lost. They were enculturated because of a number of different things; their ties to the past were 
cut. Well we’ve come to find out in the ensuing years, that is not the case. Their traditions were 
continued, their knowledge of these sites and use of these sites, the importance to their people and 
culture, and their continued existence, is really important. I’m personally in support of this. I think it 
would be helpful. It will facilitate discussions that need to take place in a different forum. 
 
Dr. Erich Longie, Spirit Lake Sioux:  What is in place works well. This will help take us to the next 
step. We still have a strong connection to the spiritual world we are very spiritual people. If this was 
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our meeting, we would have started with a prayer. There’s no separation between our daily life, our 
daily work and our spirituality, everything is combined. Our ancestors’ beliefs and ceremonies is what 
sustained them when they were put on reservations. It’s what helped them endure horrible conditions 
on the reservations and still exist to some extent on certain reservations. The ceremonies, rituals, 
beliefs were passed down to us and we still practice them. The ancient knowledge allows us to identify 
what is a grave, a stone feature, etc. We don’t like to share this knowledge. An archeologist could 
walk by these sites and not know. A regular person wouldn’t think about it. If we identify them there’s 
a chance of it being destroyed or looted because they might think they can find something there. 
We’re careful of what we say. At the same time, we realize with the population brought in by the oil 
boom, many sites are being destroyed because of progress. We realize we have to share some of 
this knowledge with you and inform you why these are important.  Rock is sacred to us. We believe 
we evolved from rock as our creation stories tell us how we came from stone. Stone is very important 
to us.  We believe we need to convey this to you. This study goes beyond what happens in the Capital, 
what Scott does, what’s currently being done, to help preserve these sites. It joins us out on the 
reservation. It helps us to use our elder knowledge, our ancestral knowledge to help preserve these 
sites. In my 65 years in ND, with the exception of a few years in the Marine Corps, I’ve seen a lot of 
progress in tribal state relations. This study will help us understand each other better. I don’t 
understand Christianity, or why they revere the cross. I wasn’t raised with Christianity but I respect it. 
I was forced to go to church when I was young when you’re forced to do something, you don’t learn. 
I still respect all religions, all spiritualties. What we want to do is share some of our sacred ancient 
knowledge in hopes that our sites are preserved and not destroyed.   I think it will help us understand 
each other better, talk things out instead of protesting. As long as I was alive I had to walk to the white 
man’s ways. I am still Lakota, and spiritual. When I go home at 5 o’clock I go back to being Lakota. 
This is what I hope that study does, sit down, understanding our ways. Differences breed mistrust 
and prejudice.  Address some of those misunderstandings and everyone will be happy.  
 
Rep. Anderson:  If you see something you have to get a tribal elder out to tell you what it is. Unless 
I know what it is I’m going to go right through it.   
 
Dr. Longie: We work with a lot of farmers and when we explain it to them, they’re willing to leave it 
alone. Exactly what I hope this study addresses. That we could somehow share this knowledge in a 
respectful manner, that will preserve it.  
 
45:00 
 
Calvin Grinnell, Tribal Historian for the Tribal Historic Preservation Office of the MHA Nation: 
Since 2009 I’ve served on the State Historical Society board, and the tribal council committee 
meetings held biennially by the ND DOT.  I’m a 64-year-old member a US Marine veteran. I’ve been 
participating in my traditional cultural ways all my life as a Hidatsa water buster clan member, 
traditional pipe carrier and sun dancer. I’ve surveyed and monitored cultural sites on and off the Ft. 
Berthold Reservation numerous time in the 18 years I’ve worked with the Tribal Historic Preservation 
office.  Many sites were adjacent to the highway roads which is why the Tribal Historic Preservation 
office meets with the DOT twice a year.  This earth is holy, sweet grass is holy, black medicine is 
holy, water is holy. They will give back our strength again. We use these gifts from the Creator to 
bless and strengthen ourselves in the sweat lodge, the sun dance and in solitary fasting ceremonies, 
on isolated buttes and sacred places.  Throughout the lands there are places marking our ancestors’ 
graves, stone circles significant to our creation stories, linear rock alignments serving as barriers to 
disease and stone circles and piles of stones made by Grandmother, our name for Mother Earth.   
These places are very important to us, created by our ancestors to mark a place that had meaning to 
them, so that we their descendants would know where to pray, where to fast, where to conduct 
ceremonies, seek spiritual guidance and direction to strengthen ourselves. That’s why this earth is 
holy and important to us.  
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Tracy Potter:  presented Attachment 5 in support.   
  
54:00 
 
Dakota Goodhouse:  Welcome to Heart River Country and Apple Creek Country.  Presented 
Attachment 6 and 7 in support.   
I’m just a citizen of ND, I don’t represent Standing Rock, I don’t represent the State, but I’m from 
Standing Rock. I work part time for the State Historic Preservation office at the Heritage Center. I’m 
a grad student. I am here in support and brought 2 papers for you to review when you have time.  The 
issue Scott Davis brought up earlier regarding 2 years ago we all know what he’s talking about. What 
I think was at the heart of the issue 2 years ago was not enough information was put into the report 
that was done for that survey.  I can’t tell you what’s in it, I can tell you what’s NOT in it.  There are 
12 primary resource documents I reference in the larger document about Remembering a Historic 
River that can be found online or through books or works you can purchase at the book store at the 
Heritage Center. These are easily available. The other thing I’d like to share is we need to talk more, 
do more research. The archeological record informs us but it’s complimented by the historical record. 
The shorter paper is forgotten history at Ft. Abraham Lincoln State Park. That forgotten history also 
has a bibliography of a dozen primary resource documents that don’t even come from our tribal 
resources. They come from your own resources; newspapers, magazines, journals and diaries of 
people who were at Ft. Lincoln when the Nez Perce were imprisoned there. If you visit Ft. Lincoln, I 
think you’ll find that narrative is entirely missing in that museum and their interpretive program. It was 
a prison camp and not just for the Nez Perce but the Grasshopper Band of the Northern Sheyenne. 
That’s a missing story. I think this resolution is a means to promoting talk and discussion about what’s 
missing on both sides of state agencies and tribal historic preservation offices and elders. It isn’t just 
the state or agencies. I’d like to share this example.   I grew up in Ft. Yates on what we call Gulf Hill. 
When I got older I took a walk up there with my great grandfather, WWI vet, Francis Winters, and he 
shared with me about the hill. We used to say little people lived up there. It became more than just 
where I lived and I wonder why we put up water towers up there. It was a special place. Maybe we 
didn’t share that important information. We took down those water towers and built a huge new one 
and now there’s a cell phone tower up on top of Gulf Hill. The THPO officer wasn’t aware it was a 
special place for my people, it was a sacred place where the Sheyenne used to go and pray. In 
English it meant The Hill That Stands Alone. We don’t even have that narrative at the Sitting Bull 
Visitor Center.  The Mandan used to live there too. I’d like to go there and find that information. I have 
to go online, www.Northdakotastudies.org and find the Sitting Rabbit map that shows the Mandan 
occupation all the way down to the border. I urge you to please support it, discussion and research 
needs to happen not just at the archeological level. We need to have these discussions regarding the 
historic records.  
 
1:00:00 
 
Carol Two Eagles: in support. I was raised off the reservation, but I was raised in the traditional 
ways.  My so many times grandfather Two Eagles was one of those hanged at Mankato the day after 
Christmas in 1862.  My grandmother Pearl taught me to sing sacred songs in a whisper so the 
government people wouldn’t come and get us or kill us.  None of you had to do that in order to worship. 
I carry a pipe and I sun dance. I did a vision quest and asked how I should walk with my prayer and I 
saw this place so I’ve been here for 11 sessions. I agree with changing the dichotomy, using different 
words.  When I first came here I was told Indians weren’t welcome here. There’s been a lot of 
improvement. I’ve dealt with a number of private individuals regarding sacred sites trying to get them 
to the right people in the State and the Historical Society to get questionable areas evaluated so they 
don’t destroy anything. I’ve had workers of developers come to me. They unearthed bones, pot sherds 
and other artifacts and when they told the boss they were told to cover them over. Those are the ones 
we need to deal with. The study won’t force that but will give some support. Give this a Do Pass so 
we can continue to build.  

http://www.northdakotastudies.org/
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Jeani Borchert – that term dichotomy – We had a meeting in February, with 10 regional tribes and 
Sen Heckamen was there. That terminology was discussed for about ½ hour and everyone decided 
dichotomy should be the word there. I think it’s because they feel there’s chasm between their 
understanding of their ancestors’ sites on the ground and the archeological perspective maybe in the 
majority. The intent of the resolution was to bridge that gap. I spoke with Dr. Longie and we would 
work with different language. I don’t think they intended it to be construed as an insurmountable 
obstacle or division but to recognize that they feel there’s that divide. 
 
Chairman Porter: you are certainly welcome to email changes to the resolution. 
 
Ken Hall, Three Affiliated Tribes, Mandan Hidatsa Arikara people and former Council member: 
As a tribal council member, I feel this is long overdue.  We always talk about who we are as a people. 
We ran conferences on the reservation- energy summits, where the industry came in. The first 
presentation was always to know whose land you’re on. The industry has reached out to some of our 
elders, Dr. Page Baker has worked with some of the companies on Cultural Sensitivity. We are on 
original territory of the Mandan people here where we sit and stand. We had a president that once 
came as a candidate, once as a president, and that’s great. But not one time acknowledge he was 
on original territory of the Mandan people. We’re behind on that. Canada is leap years ahead of us 
because their federal employees are actually scripted. If they were to come to Bismarck, they would 
acknowledge their original territory. It starts with education and understanding. What do we do if we 
find something?  As a council member, a lady from Hanover found some flint and sent it to me. 400 
years ago, my tribe, and the 4 bands in Alberta Canada, we traded. This was an international trade 
corridor back then. These are things people should know about.  There’s a lot of rich history. ND 
could take the lead on this. Why not come here for rich history? I hope this gets a Do Pass.  It’s 
something our state needs. It’s going to be valuable for our future generations. 
 
Fern Swanson, Director of the Archeology & Historic Preservation Division at the State 
Historical Society:  presented Attachment 8. 
 
Rep. Devlin:   I was hoping you would give whether or not we should do this study. 
 
Fern Swanson: We are not in opposition.   
 
Chairman Porter: further questions? Further support?  Further opposition?  Closed the hearing 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
To consider studying the dichotomy between the archaeological discipline on cultural 
resources and the knowledge and expertise of tribal elders and tribal historic preservation 
officers           
to educate local, state, and federal agencies and the public;  
and the facilitation of effective consultation and cooperation for historic and prehistoric site 
identification and registration   and the betterment of North Dakota and its citizens. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Porter: opened the hearing on SCR 4017 and presented a proposed amendment 01001 
(Attachment 1).    As we sat here and listened to everyone it didn’t seem like we needed a legislative 
study. It seemed like we needed to have a resolution that tells the Indian Affairs Commission to put 
together a working group of all interested parties they are kind of doing; to have a working group that 
fixes a problem. This amendment takes out the Legislative study and inserts the affected agencies, 
Department of Transportation, the Public Service Commission, and State Historic Preservation office, 
and puts them all into Page 1, Line 23, tells them to coordinate and create this working group.   
 
On Page 2, Line 8-9-10 should be removed so it’s not a Legislative study; so it’s a resolution telling 
them to form a committee and get to work. I’m not sure this has gone far enough. We’ll have this 
worked on further and come back to it next week. Mr. Davis’s intent was rather than make this a 
legislative study was to take it over as a working group with a resolution from us saying he should do 
it.   I’ll work on this further. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  It’s like telling the highway department to study road construction. I don’t support either 
one. The federal government has such strict guidelines on all of these sites and there’s been so much 
work done both in and outside of the Courts. If they think it’s important, my analogy is they should do 
it and we don’t need to tell them to do it.  
 
Chairman Porter: I don’t disagree.  We’ll put that together and meet next week.  
Hearing closed.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
To consider studying the dichotomy between the archaeological discipline on cultural 
resources and the knowledge and expertise of tribal elders and tribal historic preservation 
officers           
to educate local, state, and federal agencies and the public;  
and the facilitation of effective consultation and cooperation for historic and prehistoric site 
identification and registration   and the betterment of North Dakota and its citizens. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Porter: opened the hearing on SCR 4017, and presented Attachment 1 (Amendment 
19.3139.01002).  This bill is on tribal historical preservation and the cooperation between the State 
and tribal entities. This amendment moves this to the Indian Affairs Commission to do the work which 
was really happening already. It takes out the study and makes the Indian Affairs Commission report 
back to the Legislative Management. When it says that it means it’ll be assigned to a committee to 
receive the report on what they’re doing.  
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  I would move the amendment 19.3139.01002. 
 
Rep. Lefor:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter: we have a motion and second on 01002. Any discussion?  Voice vote, motion 
carried.  We have an amended resolution. 
 
Rep. Eidson:  I would move a Do Pass on SCR 4017 as amended. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter: we have a motion and a second for a Do Pass as Amended.  Further discussion? 
Roll call vote:  11 yes, 0 no, 3 absent. Rep. Eidson is carrier. Place on the Consent Calendar. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 4017 

Page 1, line 1, replace "directing" with "urging" 

Page 1, line 1, replace "Legislative Management" with " Indian Affairs Commission" 

Page 1, line 1, replace "consider studying" with "study" 

Page 1, line 2, remove "dichotomy between the" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "on" with a comma 

Page 1, line 2, after "resources" insert a comma 

Page 1, line 4, remove the semicolon 

Page 1, line 4, replace "the facilitation of' with "to facilitate" 

Page 1, line 5, remove "and registration" 

Page 1, line 14, after "regional" insert "and" 

Page 1, line 14, after "private" insert "industry" 

Page 1, line 18, remove "eligibility of' 

Page 1, remove line 19 

Page 1, line 20, remove "to the National Register of Historic Places" 

Page 1, line 21, remove "state agencies, including the Department of Transportation," 

Page 1, line 22, remove ", the State Historic Preservation Office, and the Public Service 
Commission, should" 

Page 1, line 23, replace "coordinate and consult" with "is urged to consider coordinating with 
state agencies including the Department of Transportation, State Historical Society, and 
Public Service Commission and to consult" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "Legislative Management" with " Indian Affairs Commission is urged to" 

Page 2, line 3, remove "dichotomy between the" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "on" with a comma 

Page 2, line 4, after "resources" insert a comma 

Page 2, line 6, remove the semicolon 

Page 2, line 6, replace "the facilitation of" with "to facilitate" 

Page 2, line 7, remove "and registration" 

Page 2, line 8, after "that" insert "if studied," 

Page 2, line 8, replace "Legislative Management" with " Indian Affairs Commission is urged to" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.3139.01002 
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Insert LC: 19.3139.01002 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SCR 4017: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Porter, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS and BE PLACED ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR (11 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 
3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SCR 4017 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, replace "directing" with "urging" 

Page 1, line 1, replace "Legislative Management" with "Indian Affairs Commission" 

Page 1, line 1, replace "consider studying" with "study" 

Page 1, line 2, remove "dichotomy between the" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "on" with a comma 

Page 1, line 2, after "resources" insert a comma 

Page 1, line 4, remove the semicolon 

Page 1, line 4, replace "the facilitation of' with "to facilitate" 

Page 1, line 5, remove "and registration" 

Page 1, line 14, after "regional" insert "and" 

Page 1, line 14, after "private" insert "industry" 

Page 1, line 18, remove "eligibility of' 

Page 1 , remove line 19 

Page 1, line 20, remove "to the National Register of Historic Places" 

Page 1, line 21, remove "state agencies, including the Department of Transportation," 

Page 1, line 22, remove ", the State Historic Preservation Office, and the Public Service 
Commission, should" 

Page 1, line 23, replace "coordinate and consult" with "is urged to consider coordinating with 
state agencies including the Department of Transportation, State Historical Society, 
and Public Service Commission and to consult" 

Page 2, line 3, replace "Legislative Management" with "Indian Affairs Commission is urged 
to" 

Page 2, line 3, remove "dichotomy between the" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "on" with a comma 

Page 2, line 4, after "resources" insert a comma 

Page 2, line 6, remove the semicolon 

Page 2, line 6, replace "the facilitation of' with "to facilitate" 

Page 2, line 7, remove "and registration" 

Page 2, line 8, after "that" insert "if studied," 
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Chairman and Members of the Committee: I am Senator Joan Heckaman, D-23, 

here today to introduce SCR 4017 to you. 

I grew up on a farm/ranch in eastern Eddy County. Currently, my nephew and 

family farm/ranch the same land my father and grandfather owned and farmed. 

As I think about the history of that farm, I grow increasingly concerned about the 

lost history that land and farm hold. I know from visiting with my mom that the 

post office often used the farm as a stopping off station between Jamestown and 

Devils Lake in the "Old Days". I also know that there is a rock circle on one of the 

hills on the farm because I saw it when I was exploring on my own when I was 

little. But I know nothing else now and will never be able to find out what stories 

that place and land have to tell, because all my relatives have passed away. 

History has been lost. 

That is why I am here today. SCR 4017 would have Legislative Management 

consider studying the two different methods that tribal elders and leaders identify 

historic sites as compared to the State Historic Society and the National Registry 

of Historic Places. That became evident when I visited with the THPO (Tribal 

Historic Preservation Officer) from Spirit Lake, Dr. Erich Longie. During our 

conversation I asked him if there is anything the state of North Dakota can do to 

help preserve historic sites. At first, he said he didn't think there was, but in a few 

days, I got an e-mail from him discussing the topic again. There is a significant 

different in determination of historic sites between tribes and states. The federal 

government is also involved, but we can't legislate those issues, so we focus on 

things we can do. We can study and maybe come up with a way to join forces 

together to document the many historic sites in North Dakota. If we don't do it 

soon, that knowledge will be lost forever, just like on my family's farm. 

I also happened to sit at the same table as Jeanie Borchert, DOT, who oversees 

the joint effort between DOT and tribes when roads are being planned. She has a 

wealth of knowledge to assist in this effort and I welcome her and everyone who 

shares the love of the history of North Dakota. She is also instrumental in historic 

documentation. 



I hope we can work together to document the many important historic sites and 

come to a compromise on how and why these ways to record history differ, but 

also be stronger together in our efforts to keep history alive. 

That concludes my testimony and I would stand for any questions. 
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February 28, 2019 

Chairwoman Unruh, members of the Energy & Natural Resources Committee, for the 

record my name is Richard Marcellais, Senator from District 9, of Belcourt I am here today 

to provide testimony on Senate Concurrent Resolution 4017. 

Senate Concurrent Resolution 4017 a Legislative Management Study the history of our North 

Dakota Native American Tribes. 

The tribes of North Dakota contribute greatly to our state, and we welcome you to explore 

reservation and experience Native American culture. Learn about each tribe's history, lauguage 

and traditions by visiting attractions like reconstructed earth lodge villages or attend a powwow 

and celebrate the culture through song and dance. 

Long before Lewis and Clark stepped foot in what is now North Dakota, French Canadian 

trappers were common visitors to Native American villages. 

They mixed with and married into local families and gave birth to what became known as the 

Metis. The descendants of the Metis and their culture can be found in North Dakota in the Turtle 

Mountains and other areas in the northeast part of the state. 

Thank You very much for the opportunity to appear in support of Senate Concurrent Resolution 

4017. If there are any questions I will try and answer them. 

P�-l 
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I am Calvin Grim1ell, historian for the Tribal Historic Preservation Office of 

the Mandan Hidatsa Arikara Nation. Tribal Historic Preservation Officer Elgin 

Crows Breast is on extended medical leave and could not be here today. Since 

2009, I have served on the board of the State Historical Society of ND and attend 

the Tribal Consultation Committee meetings held bi-annually since 2007 by the 

ND Department of Transportation. 

I am a 63-year-old enrolled member and a US Marine veteran; I have been 

participating in my traditional cultural lifeways all my life as a Hidatsa Water 

Buster Clan member, traditional pipe carrier and sun dancer. I have surveyed and 

monitored cultural sites on and off the Fort Berthold Reservation numerous times 

in the 18 years I have worked for the Tribal Historic Preservation Office. Many of 

these sites were adjacent to the many highways and roads that crisscross the state, 

which is why our Tribal Historic Preservation Office meets with the ND 

Department of Transportation twice a year. 

The words to a song given to my people by powerful spiritual benefactors in 

one of our ceremonies says; "this earth is holy, sweetgrass is holy, black medicine 

is holy, water is holy; all these things are holy. They will give you back your 

strength again." As the original indigenous people on this land, we still use these 
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gifts from the Creator to bless and strengthen ourselves in the sweat lodge, the sun 

dance, and in solitary fasting ceremonies on isolated buttes and sacred places. 

Throughout this land, there are rock cairns marking the graves of our 

ancestors, stones arranged in the fonn of turtles significant to our creation stories, 

linear rock alignments serving as barriers to disease, and stone circles and piles of 

stone made by Grandmother Who Never Dies, our name for Mother Earth. These 

places are very important to us; they were created by our ancestors to mark a place 

that had meaning to them so that we, their descendants, would know where to pray, 

fast and conduct ceremonies to seek spiritual guidance and direction to strengthen 

ourselves. That is why "this earth is holy" to us. 

In conclusion, I support this resolution to study the perspectives of all 

involved tribal, scientific and governmental entities to seek cultural understanding 

and mutual respect. Thank you! 
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Chairman and Members of the Committee: I am Senator Joan Heckaman, D-23, 

here today to introduce SCR 4017 to you. 

I grew up on a farm/ranch in eastern Eddy County . Currently, my nephew and 

family farm/ranch the same land my father and grandfather owned and farmed. 

As I think about the history of that farm, I grow increasingly concerned about the 

lost history that land and farm hold. I know from visiting with my mom that the 

post office often used the farm as a stopping off station between Jamestown and 

Devils Lake in the "Old Days" .  I also know that there is a rock circle on one of the 

hil ls on the farm because I saw it when I was exp lor ing on my own when I was 

l ittle. But I know nothing else now and will never be able to f ind out what stories 

that place and land have to tell, because all my relatives have passed away. 

History has been lost. 

That is why I am here today. SCR 4017 would have Legislative Management 

consider studying the two different methods that tri bal elders and leaders identify 

historic s ites as compared to the State Historic Society and the National Registry 

of Historic Places. That became evident when I visited with the THPO (Tribal 

Historic Preservation Officer) from Sp ir it Lake, Dr. Erich Longie. During our 

conversation I asked him if there is anything the state of North Dakota can do to 

help preserve historic sites. At first, he said he didn't think there was, but in a few 

days, I got an e-mai l from him discussing the topic again. There is a significant 

difference in the determination of historic sites between tribes and states. The 

federal government is also involved, but we can't legislate those issues, so we 

focus on things we can do. We can study and maybe come up with a way to join 

forces together to document the many historic sites in North Dakota. If we don't 

do it soon, that knowledge will be lost forever, just l ike on my family's farm. 

Part of the diff iculty ar ises when sensitive historic information is identif ied, and 

tri bes are fearful that the disclosure will result in disturbances to these sites. That 

brings the question of how we identify, record, and store the information without 

the fear of loot ing or disturbances to these historic sites. 
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I had the privi lege of meeting Jeanie Borchert, DOT, who oversees the joint effort 

between DOT and tribes when roads are being p lanned . S he  ha s  a wea lth of 

knowledge to assist in this effort. 

I do know that the State Historical Society has a Tribal Preservation Officer who 

works closely with the tribes, but I believe through this study we can clarify some 

ambiguities and have an enhanced preservation system in North Dakota. 

I hope we can identify tribal concerns pertaining to historic preservation, continue 

the cooperation that occurs now between the tribes and state historical society, 

and continue to support the mutual trust through consultation, cooperation, and 

collaboration. This study wil l  identify gaps in the preservation process .  

Please remember that this is a "consider studying" resolution. I t  i s  not 

mandatory, nor can we ensure that if this resolution passes, that Legis lative 

Management wil l select this study, but if we don't pass this, we know that there 

wil l be NO study. 

I respectful ly ask for your support in passing SCR 40 17, so it has a chance to be 

selected as a study . 

That concludes my testimony and I would stand for any questions. • 

• 



NORTH DAKOTA SENATE 

STATE CAPITOL 
600 EAST BOULEVARD 

BISMARCK, ND 58505-0360 

fit· 
SC� 4017 

3. 15 .19 
Attachment ..is_ 
I • 

·f ' r. 

;.,. $ ._�,,. 
-�,,,. ,- # 

r,,-. \fJK1\\ \!
'to 

COMMITTEES: Senator Richard Marcellais 
District 9 
301 Laite Loop NE 
Belcourt, ND 58316-3877 

Education 
Government and Veterans Affairs 

R: 701-4 77 -8985 
B: 701-477-8985 
C: 70 1-278-0632 
F: 701-477-8985 
rmarcellais@nd.gov Testimony 

Senate Concurrent Resolution 401 7 

Energy & Natural Resources Committee 

Representative Porter, Chairman 

March 1 5, 201 9  

Chairman Porter, members of the Energy & Natural Resources Committee, for the record 

my name is Richard Marcellais, Senator from District 9, of Belcourt I am here today to 

provide testimony on Senate Concurrent Resolution 4017. 

Senate Concurrent Resolution 4017 a Legislative Management Study the history of our North 

Dakota Native American Tribes. 

The tribes of North Dakota contribute greatly to our state, and we welcome you to explore 

reservation and experience Native American culture. Learn about each tribe's history, lauguage 

and traditions by visiting attractions like reconstructed earth lodge villages or attend a powwow 

and celebrate the culture through song and dance. 

Long before Lewis and Clark stepped foot in what is now North Dakota, French Canadian 

trappers were common visitors to Native American villages. 

They mixed with and married into local families and gave birth to what became known as the 

Metis. The descendants of the Metis and their culture can be found in North Dakota in the Turtle 

Mountains and other areas in the northeast part of the state. 

Thank You very much for the opportunity to appear in support of Senate Concurrent Resolution 

4017. If there are any questions I will try and answer them. 
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March 1 4, 20 1 9  
Energy and Natural Resources Committee 
State Capitol 
Bismarck, ND 

PO B )  400 

RE: North Dakota Senate Concurrent Resolution 4017 

Greetings Honorable Senators : 

Let me introduce myself I am Jeff Desjarlais Jr. Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa Indians 
Tribal Historic Preservation Officer. 

SCR 4017 
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I support the Concurrent Resolution 40 1 7  for the following reasons, First I believe that we along 
with other tribal nations have the longest history in this State of North Dakota, we have both 
,-vrinen and oral history passed down from generation to generation from our ancestors. Secondly 
Native American history should be told by the Native American tribes of this territory so that we 
can express our views and history of the land and tel l our own stories. Lastly I believe tribal 
input into decision making needs more involvement in determining cultural resources and 
historical properties within North Dakota. 

In speaking with the elders of our reservation (Turtle Mountain), they have extensive knowledge 
of the whole territory, they orate about different areas of North Dakota and events that have 
taken place that are not �Titten in the history. They talk about historic event such as battles, 
trades, and areas where they went out to pray and signify these locations are sacred. The best 
way to protect these sites are to work with elders and historians of the Tribes to educate the 
public and give allowable information from the tribes to the public to acknowledge these sites for 
protection. 

I sincerely hope the senate and house approve this resolution and give the Tribal Nations a voice 
in the great State of North Dakota. 

Sincerely, 



• 
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HOUSE ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOUCES COMMITTEE 

Date : March 15, 2019 at 9 : 00 a.m . 

North Dakota Department of Transportation 

Jeani Borchert, Environmental and Transportation Services Division 

Senate Concurrent Resolution 401 7  
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Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the committee. I am Jeani Borchert, I work in the 
Environmental and Transportation Services Division at the North Dakota Department of 
Transportation (Department) . I am here to support Senate Concurrent Resolution 40 1 7 . Thank 
you for giving me the opportunity to discuss this proposed resolution and answer any questions . 

Part of my duties at the Department are to consult with regional tribes in regard to cultural 
resources of value to them. The reason for this is that, as an applicant for federal funds and 
approval through the Federal Highway Administration, we ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the National Historic Preservation Act (54 U .S .C .  302706) and the implementing 
regulations (36 CFR Part 800). In 1 992 there were amendments to the National Historic 
Preservation Act requiring Federal agencies to consult with tribes on sites they value within their 
aboriginal territories .  The corresponding regulations came out in 1 998 and the Department 
worked with FHW A to define an appropriate response. 

Our method of tribal consultation has varied throughout the ensuing years, but in 2004 we began 
working with eight regional tribes to develop a programmatic approach to consultation. As a 
result we signed a Programmatic Agreement with nine regional tribes in November of 2006. 
S ince that time our consultation efforts have expanded to around 1 6  regional tribes from North 
Dakota, Minnesota, South Dakota, Nebraska, and Montana. 

Through the years leading this effort I have come to have tremendous respect for our Tribal 
partners. I ' ve learned to look at the sites through an altered lens . As an archaeologist, I 'm  
looking for  artifacts, and datable features that allow me to place a site within a framework of 
time and related activities . With enough data, archaeologists may talk about not only the history 
of l ife in ND but culture change, the influences of change, and adaptations through time . In my 
l imited understanding, the Tribal perspective is more personal , more impactful, and more 
comprehensive . 

It i s  not my place to speak for the Tribes. There are people who have testified here who have 
done that quite well  on their own. However, I have seen the veracity of our Tribal partner' s 
knowledge of stone feature sites in particular and their vast knowledge of their culture and the 
practices and spirituality of their ancestors through their oral traditions. The Department supports 
our Tribal partner' s  right to identify and evaluate sites of significance from their own knowledge 
of past use and the significance of that use to their Tribes and to the State of North Dakota. This 
Resolution wil l  support an effort for state agencies involved in the National Historic Preservation 
Act Section 1 06 process to come together with one well  understood perspective and direction, 
facil itating the work we all do for this State . 

• Therefore, the Department asks for a do pass to this resolution. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I would be happy to answer any questions. 
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Test imony of Tracy Potter on  SCR 4017, House Energy and Natu ra l  Resou rces Comm ittee, March 15, 

2019 

I r ise to encou rage you r  do-pass recommendat ion on  SCR 4017, but I wou ld  l i ke you to cons ider a 

fr iend ly  a mendment to improve the tone of the reso l ut ion .  I don't l i ke the word dichotomy and neither 

shou ld  you .  

My profess i ona l  ca reer has often i nvo lved the top ic o f  th i s  reso l ut ion .  At Fort Abraham L inco l n  State 

Pa rk, a l l  of the reconstruct ions at the cava l ry post and  the Mandan I nd i an  vi l l age requ i red hundreds of 

thousa nds of do l l a rs i n  a rcheo logica l stud ies .  And the i nte rpretat ion at the Mandan vi l l age was i nformed 

by those stud ies  a nd  ear l i e r  su rveys and stud ies .  And, it was a l so i nfo rmed by Mandan, l iv ing and dead. 

The best u ndersta nd i ng of cu l tures and cu l ture change ove r t ime comes from the synthesis of wisdom 

from many sou rces .  And, every whereas i n  this reso l ut ion i s  encou ragi ng synthes is .  That's at the heart of 

it . 

Descr i b i ng the sou rces of i nfo rmation as i n  a d ichotomy is  not in that sp i r it . D ichotomy in my 1961 

Webster's Co l leg iate i s  "a d iv is ion o r  the process of d ivid i ng i nto two especia l ly mutua l ly exc l us ive or 

contrad i ctory gro ups ."  

Archeo logica l and t r iba l  perspectives a re anyth ing but m utua l ly exc l us ive or  contrad ictory.  At least they 

shou ldn't be, and  th i s  reso lut ion I hope a ims to ensure that they a re not. The sea rch for knowledge, 

wisdom and  truth needs every perspective. 

I suggest the fo l lowing amendment to the reso l ut ion t it le, 

Page one, Line 2 and on Page two, Line 3, in both places: 

replace "the dichotomy" with "ways to improve communication" 

I be l i eve that bette r rep resents the i ntent of the reso l ut ion .  

Than k  you .  



Forgotten H istory At State Park 
Omission Of Prison Camp Narrative 
By Dakota Goodhouse 
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On the n i g ht of October 2 1 -22 , 1 804 , the Corps of D iscovery establ ished 
camp  above the abandoned Mandan I nd ian  Vi l l age known today as On-A
S iant ,  located at present-day Fort Abraham L i nco ln  State Park .  Thei r 
m iss io n ,  one of exp lorat ion and science ,  but a lso one of peace and 
friendsh i p .  

Seventy-three years later, on October 5 ,  1 877 ,  the Nimi ipuu (Nez Perce) concluded a runn ing 
battle from their homelands in Idaho to Bear Paw Mountain, MT, heart-breaking ly short a few 
mi les to US-Canadian border. Their destination: Fort Walsh ,  to l ive amongst Sitting Bul l  and the 
Hunkpapa Lakota, whom the Nez Perce thought would assist them. Nearly 800 Nez Perce were 
captured by Col .  Mi les . 300 of the Nez Perce were imprisoned at Fort Abraham Lincoln in 
October , 1 877 ,  as they were prepared to be sh ipped to Indian Territory (OK) . Some of them 
died, as prisoners of war, at Fort Abraham Lincoln. 

Among the 300 Nez Perce prisoners of war was Tzi-Kal-Tza, or Daytime Smoke, an elder at 
seventy-one/two years , who survived the mi l itary's sing le-minded pursuit of h is people, had 
actual ly foug ht to defend his people in the Nez Perce War, and was part of their subsequent 
capture at the Bear Paw confl ict, and their relocation to Indian Territory (OK) . Information at the 
Nez Perce County H istorical Museum in Lewiston , ID, says that Daytime Smoke was the son of 
Captain Wi l l iam Clark. 

The imprisonment of the Nez Perce survives in l iv ing memory today, wh ich isn't so long ago as 
one would imag ine.  "My great-grandmother's s isters , two of them, died there , "  shared Mr. 
Woodrow Star, an enrol led member of the Nez Perce tribe. " I  paid a visit to Fort Lincoln to visit 
my grandmothers ' graves . None of the park rangers , not even the park manager, had ever 
heard of th is . "  

After the fort was decommissioned i n  1 890, al l veterans and citizens at rest there - including the 
POWs, were exhumed and reinterred at St . Mary's Cemetery . The Nez Perce were buried in a 
l ine , their names unrecorded. Their graves in Bismarck l ie there sti l l ,  in unmarked graves . The 
Nez Perce today, want to change th is .  

Fort Abraham Lincoln has seen a lot of reconstruction over the years . Blockhouses and the 
museum/vis itor center have been in place in the 1 930's .  Earthlodges were orig inal ly 
reconstructed by the CCC in the 1 930's too , then reconstructed as needed. In the late 1 980's 
the commanding officer's quarters were reconstructed, bui lt as General Custer would have 
known it in 1 875. Four other bui ldings fol l owed. The museum/visitor center was renovated to 
feature the Mandan Indian and mi l itary occupations . 

The museum/visitor center displays feature archaeolog ical findings both from the Mandan and 
mi l itary , Sheheke, (Wh ite Wolf; Wh ite Coyote) a Mandan who was born there, an artistic 
diorama of the h istor ic Mandan vi l lage there, Fort Abraham Lincoln, General Custer, and the 
Civ i l ian Conservat ion Corps . The Little Bighorn campaign and batt le are also featured, as is the 
Corps of Discovery . 
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Gu ided tours of the command ing officer's q uarters ("The Custer House") are offered throughout 
the tourist season. The gu ides are dressed in period attire and speak in the present tense as 
though it's 1875 rather than the modern day .  The Custer House features various novelties that 
once belonged to Lt. Col . G .A.  Custer and h is  wife. These are pointed out to the visitor by way 
of a prompt, 'Take special notice of . . .  " 

The fort's h istory is summarized in a prologue and conclus ion of every tour: it was bu i lt in 1873, 
a cavalry post to protect the Northern Pacific Rai lway survey crews , the Black Hi l l s  Exped ition of 
187 4 (to confirm the discovery of gold) receives a mention,  the Little Bighorn Campaign 
(Centennial Campaign) , the pl ight of El izabeth "Libby" Custer fol lowing the fai l ure of her 
husband 's  command , the decommission of the fort, cit izens d ismantl ing the fort for construction 
materials in their homes , the CCC placing bu i ld ing markers ,  and the reconstruction of the fort . 

What is  entirely miss ing from the narrative in the interpretive programming and the museum 
information about the mi l itary occupation is the prison camp h istory . There is no mention either 
of the 1875 Treaty of Fort Abraham Lincoln, which was a big activity there at the fort. Lt . Col . 
Custer cal led on members of the Arikara, Hidatsa, Hunkpapa Lakota, Mandan, and Yanktonai 
Dakota to end their generations-long intertribal warring . 

The interpretive training that seasonal staff at Fort Abraham Lincoln State Park receive is based 
on the pract ices of Freeman Ti lden. There are s ix principles in th is methodology.  T i lden's 
principles are the basics of al l  i nterpretive programming found in the National Parks , state parks , 
museums , and other institutions across the country . T i lden's principles are: 

1. Any interpretation that does not somehow relate what is being d isplayed or described to 
someth ing with in the personal ity or experience of the vis itor wi l l  be steri le. 

2. Information, as such , is not interpretation. Interpretation is revelation based upon information. 
But they are entirely d ifferent things .  However, all interpretation incl udes information. 

3. Interpretation is an art, which combines many arts , whether the materials presented are 
scientific ,  h istor ical or arch itectural . Any art is in some degree teachable. 

4. The ch ief aim of Interpretation is not instruction,  but provocation .  

5. Interpretation shou ld aim to present a whole rather than a part, and must address itself to the 
whole man rather than any phase. 

6. Interpretation addressed to ch i ldren (say,  up to the age of twelve) should not be a d i l ution of 
the presentation to adu lts , but shou ld fol low a fundamental ly d ifferent approach . To be at its 
best, it wi l l  req u ire a separate program. 

The whole h istory of the park is not addressed , so the whole experience of the vis itor is not 
"wholesome. "  Th is  omission has shaped the experience of mi l l ions of vis itors over the years the 
park has been active. It i sn't j ust the interpretation or presentation of th is trag ic h istory that th is 
is  miss ing ; the prison camp h istory of Fort Abraham Lincoln State Park receives a half 
paragraph mention in the ND Parks and Recreation Department's  publ ication by Arnold 0. 
Gopl in, "The Histor ical S ignificance of Ft . Lincoln State Park" and then only that the 7th Cavalry 
escorted the Nez Perce to Bismarck, not Fort Abraham Lincoln. In another publ ication of the ND 
Parks and Recreation Department, "100 Years - Fort Abraham Lincoln State Park, "  the Nez 
Perce are miss ing entirely .  
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An i nforma l  visit to the North Dakota Parks and Recreation Department on Thursday, August, 
25 , 2016, and message for the d i rector went unanswered . An emai l  to the Fort Abraham Lincoln 
State Park received a reply on Oct. 15 , 2016, but on ly to say that the park manager would 
respond " next week . "  There has been no further fol low-up from the North Dakota Parks and 
Recreation Department. 

Mr. Woodrow Star h umbly requested any and al l i nformation that the North Dakota Parks and 
Recreation cou ld  share with h im about h is relatives imprisonment. The staff cou ld not respond 
to Mr. Woodrow, because thei r i nformation is woefu l ly incomplete. Fort Abraham Lincoln State 
Park does not employ an actua l  h istorian  to research and construct their  i nterpretive prog ram. In 
October of 2015 , the park manager referred Mr. Star to me. 

Here's fol lows a bibl iog raphy of non-native primary resources wh ich specif ica l ly mention the 
Nez Perce in Bismarck and at Fort Abraham L inco ln i n  October of 1877 .  

Primary Resources : 
Fred G . ,  Bond .  " F loatboat ing On The Yel lowstone . "  1st Ed . New York, New York : New York 
Pub l ic  Library ,  1925 . 1-22. 

Mi les , Gen . Nelson Appleton .  "The Nez Perce Campaign & The Siege And The Surrender. " In 
Persona l  Recol lections And Observat ions Of Genera l Nelson A. Mi les , 250-280. 1st Printi ng . 
New York , New York: Werner Company, 1896. 

Zimmer, Wi l l i am F. "Part Two: August 1, 1877 to December 31, 1877 . "  In Frontier Sold ier: An 
En l isted Man's Jou rna l ,  Sioux And Nez Perce Campaigns ,  1877 ,  ed ited by Jerome Greene, 89-
160. 1st ed . Helena ,  Montana:  Montana Historical Society Press , 1998. 

Jou rna ls : 
Romeyn , Capt. Henry .  "The Capture Of Ch ief Joseph And The Nez Perce Ind ians . "  
Contributions To The Montana Historical Society , Vol .  2 (1896) : 283-91. 

Ha ines ,  Francis .  "Nez Perce Ind ians . "  Army And Navy Journa l ,  1877 ,  290-91. 

Magazi nes : 
Hen ry Remsen , Remsen (Ti l ton) . "After The Nez Perces . "  Field And Stream And Rod And Gun ,  
December 1, 1877 ,  403-04. 

"The Surrender Of Joseph . "  Harper's Weekly, November 17 , 1877 ,  905-906. 

Newspapers : 
Bismarck Tri-Weekly Tribune, November, 21 & 23, 1877 .  

Cheyenne Da i ly Leader, November 25 , 1877.  

Inter-Ocean , November 23, 1877.  

The Nez Perce themselves know thei r own h istory . They survived d isplacement from thei r 
homelands ,  imprisonment, and placement in Ind ian Territory (Oklahoma) . 
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Goplen , Former Sen ior Foreman Historian for the National Park Service min imized th is tragedy 
to half a parag raph and displaced the locality to Bismarck, ND .  Fort Abraham L incoln State Park 
staff have repeatedly ig nored calls to address the omiss ion of th is h istory i n  an effort to preserve 
the lion ized i nteg rity of an egotistical and i ncompetent military commander. The Fort Abraham 
L incoln State Park website focuses only on the Mandan Indian and mil itary occupations and 
provides a link to L ittle Bighorn History .  There is a pattern of omiss ion of h istorical fact that is 
taking  place at Fort Abraham Lincoln State Park. One can only hope that this changes . 

Visit th is park .  It's still the g reatest park i n  North Dakota. Ask the park manager to develop the 
interpretive narrative .  It doesn't need to be apologetic .  It needs to be informed. 
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Rememberi ng A H istoric  River 
Significant Mentions In Historic Resources 
By Dakota Goodhouse 
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The Lakh6ta peop le keep thei r co l lective memory a l ive i n  p ictog raph ic  
records ca l led wi nter  counts . One such wi nter count ,  the Brown Hat Winter 
Count ,  reaches back to what ethnolog ists and h i storians m ight ca l l  "myth
h i story , "  to c i rca 90 1 . Th is h istory reaches back hund reds of years and 
reca l ls the a rriva l of  the horse i n  1 692 , the fi rst horse stea l i ng  ra id  i n  1 706 , 
i nter-tr i ba l  confl i ct ,  contact with traders ,  sma l l pox, sta rfa l ls ,  ecl i pses , 
comets , sun  dances,  wh ite b ison h u nts , confl icts with so ld iers ,  treat ies ,  the 
a rriva l of sett lers ,  the board i ng school  and reservat ion  era ,  and surviva l .  

If the Cannonba l l  River were excluded from primary resources like journals ,  maps , and winter 
counts , our  North Dakota history would be poorer for it . There is a continuous cultura l  
occupation of this Missouri River tributary reaching back to circa 1300 through the tribal 
histories of the Mandan ,  Arikara , Cheyenne, Yanktonai Dakota , and Hunkpapa Lakota. 

I schedu led a viewing of the Dakota Access Pipeline C lass I l l su rvey report with the North 
Dakota State Historic Preservation Office at 4 :00 PM on March 1, 2016. The report is in th ree 
thick vol umes , and there was no possible way that I cou ld view the entire thing in one sitting, 
however, I narrowed my search to the Cannonba l l  River and Beaver Creek. According to the 
authors of this report , they admitted to no tribal consu ltation .  They don't have to, because the 
pipeline does not physica l ly cross the reservation border. The report doesn't mention much in 
the way of history and cu ltu re. What is mentioned, can 't be shared, because it may lead to the 
distu rbance or destruction of the resource. 

What it doesn 't say needs to be shared. The report does not mention the flood of 1825 opposite 
of the mouth of the Cannonba l l  River - thirty lodges , or about 150-180 people drowned. There 
was no mention of The Charger's last camp on Beaver Creek either. The Charger was a major 
historic figu re in the War of 1812 , he fought in three conflicts in Ohio , met President Van Buren ,  
met King George I l l ,  led as many as 700 Dakh6ta-Lakh6ta under Col .  Leavenworth 's command 
of the Missouri Legion in 1823 in the first ever US military campaign on P lains Indians against 
the Arikara . A major historic figure? A former US president and an English king certain ly thought 
SO. 

These few things were brought to the attention an individual  at the ND SHPO on March 1, 2016, 
a long with where he cou ld find this information .  The fol lowing day, that individual responded that 
this info is a lso be found in the British Museum Winter Count ,  in London ,  England. 

The north and south banks of the Cannonba l l  River are rife with physical evidence of historic 
and cu ltu ra l  occupations of people who are stil l here.  This physical evidence of vil lage remains 
and midden mounds are complemented by surviving ora l  tradition ;  there are various mentions in 
historic journa ls from English resources (i .e .  John  Evans) to American resources (i .e .  Manuel 
Lisa ,  Corps of Discovery , etc . ) .  As to whether or not the historic occupations of the Arikara ,  
Cheyenne,  and Mandan Indians ever interred their deceased in the vicinity of the Cannonba l l  
River mouth , i t  is  absolutely preposterous to say that  there are no buria l grounds nearby - to 
say so wou ld be to suggest that no one ever died in any of the cu ltu ra l  occupations .  Alfred 
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Bowers '  Mandan i nformants told h im that the i r  ancestors buried the ir  deceased " i n  earl ier  
t imes . "  

The  S itt i ng  Rabbit map o f  the Missouri River, from the North Dakota-South Dakota border to the 
North Dakota-Montana border, was commiss ioned by Ori n  L ibby i n  1 906.  At the t ime ,  L ibby was 
the Secretary of the State H istorical Society of North Dakota (SHSND) .  L i bby sought out Sitt ing 
Rabbit ,  a Mandan I nd ian  man,  to capture the geog raphy of the Missouri R iver as they knew i t .  
S itt ing Rabbit d i dn 't  d isappo int i n  h is  efforts . In fact , the Mandan I nd ian v i l lages at the mouth of 
the Cannonba l l  River, both the north and south bank v i l lages ,  are ca l led the B ig River Vi l lages . 
The Mandan I nd ian  name of the Cannonba l l  River is the Big River. Th is precious map is sti l l  i n  
the  co l lect ions of  the  SHSND.  The SHSND has g racious ly up loaded th i s  map for pub l ic  viewing 
on  the i r  N D  Studies website .  

Accord i ng  to Co l .  A B . Welch's "Seven F i res , "  Somet ime around 1 750 ,  the  Sah iye la (Red 
Talkers ; Cheyenne) were compel led by the Lakh6ta to cross the Missouri River at the mouth of 
the Cannonba l l  River . The Sah iye la were hard pressed to make peace with the Lakh6ta or be 
exterm inated , so they embraced the ir  old foe and became a l l ies .  A g reat i nter-tri ba l  adoption , 
cemented by marriages , was arranged . But not a l l  the Lakh6ta were keen to make an a l ly of a 
former enemy .  

The Brown Hat Winter Count (aka Bapt iste Good Winter Count; S icarJg u ,  "Bru le") i n  the winter 
count co l l ections at the National  Museum of The American I nd ian in Wash ington DC,  has been 
made ava i lab le  in its ent i rety on l i ne .  This winter count reca l l s  1 762- 1 763 as the "people were 
burnt winter. " The entry deta i ls  a g reat pra i rie  fi re that caught up  to the i r  v i l l age .  Many people 
and horses were k i l led i n  th is  fi re . Survivors themse lves were burnt about their legs and made it 
through this tria l  by j umping i nto Long Lake . This band of Lakh6ta had fought the Cheyenne in 
the Cannonba l l  area .  The Cheyenne had reta l i ated by cross ing the M issouri River at the mouth 
of the Cannonba l l  River and tracking the Lakh6ta a long Long Lake Creek, where they set fire to 
the p la ins .  The l ate Albert Wh ite Hat Sr. (Rosebud ;  S icarJgu) ,  reca l led the oral trad i t ion of the 
S icarJg u as tak ing p lace in the B ismarck reg ion .  The confl i ct wh ich resu lted in the formation of 
the S icarJgu began at the mouth of the Cannonba l l  River. The identity of one of the tri bes of the 
Ocheth i  Sak6wirJ (The Seven Counci l  F i res ;  'The Great Sioux Nation") t ied to this location is 
s ign ificant .  

The Bei necke L ibrary Map, at Ya le ,  CT, the only evidence of John Evans travels (h is journals 
may have been destroyed or lost) provides the on ly testimony of h is  journey on  the Upper 
M issouri River . Th is  map was referenced and annotated by the Corps of Discovery . Evans 
recorded on  h is  map a series of streams ,  many unknown to h im by name; one of the 
outstand ing  streams he recorded was the " Bomb River, " or the Cannonba l l  River .  

The Corps of D iscovery ment ion the Cannonba l l  River as " La Bu l let" on October 1 8 , 1 804 . 
Referenc ing Evans '  map ,  Capta in  Wi l l i am C lark wal ked that even ing i n  search of the remarkable 
p laces ment ioned by Evans ,  but cou ldn't fi nd them , though by then , the Corps' campsite was 
north of the mouth of the Cannonbal l  River. Co-Capta i n  Meriwether Lewis noted on th is same 
date that the cannonba l l  concret ions were "of excel lent g rit for Grindstones , "  and had h is  men 
select one to "answer for an anker . "  

The P ictog raph ic  B ison Robe, at the Peabody Museum of Archaeology and Ethno logy at 
Harvard U n ivers ity , MA, deta i l s  the i ntertri bal  confl i cts amongst the Arikara, Mandan ,  H idstsa,  
Hunkpapa Lakota , and Yanktonai  Dakota i n  the Heart River and Cannonba l l  River area along 
the M issouri River du ring the 1 790s . Th is same robe deta i ls  one of many confl i cts between the 
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tribes of the Upper Missouri River which concluded in the 1 803 Battle of Heart River, which saw 
the expansion of the Hul)kphapha territory .  This conf l ict is remembered in the Drifting Goose 
Winter Count (aka John K. Bear Winter Count) as Tha Chal)te Wakpa ed okf chize , or "There 
was a battle  at Heart River . "  The expansion of Hul)kphapha territory is signif icant. This territorial 
boundary is recognized in the 1 868 Fort Laram ie Treaty . 

Ensign Nathanie l  Pryor, a sergeant of the Corps of D iscovery du ring the exped ition,  recorded on 
September 9, 1 807 , that the Arikara and Mandan were at war. The Mandan had k i l led two 
Arikara at the mouth of the Cannonbal l  River. Test imony of the conf l ict at Cannonbal l  River was 
de l ivered to Pryor at the Grand River by the Lakh6ta. Pryer's previous experience with the 
Arikara and Lakh6ta made him aware that the best pol icy was to place every conf idence in thei r  
word ; they had no reason to l i e .  

Manuel  Lisa, a fu r trader  of the American Fu r Company, recorded that tensions were high on 
the Northern P lains among tribes who were pro-Eng l ish trade ,  those who were pro-American 
trade ,  and American Fur  Company trappers in the fal l of 1 81 2 . The Crow and Lakh6ta had ki l led 
American trappers , the Hidatsa had stolen American Fur Company horses , the Arikara had 
ind iscrim inately ki l led trappers be they Eng l ish or American, and the Cheyenne had robbed and 
whipped American Fur  Company trappers on the Cannonbal l  River. 

Botanist John Bradbury made a journey to the Cannonbal l  River in 1 81 1 .  Bradbu ry noted late in 
the day on June 20, the "val ley of Cannon-bal l  River, bounded on each side by a range of smal l 
h i l l s ,  v is ible as far as the eye can reach; and as they appear to d im inish regu larly , in the 
proportion of the i r  d istance , they produce a s ingu lar and pleasing effect. The Cannon-bal l  River 
was m uddy at this t ime ;  but whether it is constantly so or not , I cou ld  not learn. It is here about 
one hund red and s ixty yards wide ,  but so shal low that we crossed it without swimm ing . We 
camped on a very fine prai rie ,  near the river, afford ing g rass in abundance , nearly a yard high. 
The al l uvion of the river is about a m i le in breadth from bluff to bluff, and is very beautifu l ,  being 
prai rie ,  interspersed with g roves of trees , and ornamented with beautifu l  plants , now in f lower. " 
Among Bradbury's f ind ings was a species of f lax he identif ied as l inum perenne . The Lakh6ta 
know the native b lue f lax as Chal)h l6gar:i Nablaga ("Hol low-Stem To-Blossom-From-Within") 
and employ the seed in thei r  food stock. 

Bradbu ry retu rned to the Cannonbal l  River on July 7 ,  1 81 9, for the express pu rpose of procuri ng 
add itional botany specimens . 

The B lue Thunder Winter Count, the No Two Horns Winter Count ,  and the High Dog Winter 
Count ,  al l of which are in the col lections at the State Historical Society of North Dakota - the 
High Dog Winter Count is on d isplay in  the Early Peoples Gal lery - a l l  recal l  a devastating flood 
in the spring of 1 825 .  The High Dog Winter Count remembers the f lood as Mnf wichat'tA,  or 
" Many d ied by d rowning . "  The B lue Thunder Winter Count remembers the flood as Mnf 
wichat'tE ,  or " Many d ied by drowning . "  Accord ing to the High Dog Winter Count, this fatal winter 
camp was opposite of the mouth of the Cannonbal l  River, and the s ite is remembered as Etu 
Pha Sul)g t'A , or " Dead Horse Head Point . "  The SteamboatfThin Elk Winter Count, in the 
col lections of the Buechel Museum at the St . Francis Ind ian School on the Rosebud Ind ian 
Reservation in South Dakota, records that it was thi rty lodges of lhal)kthUl)Wal)na Dakh6ta who 
d rowned in the Horsehead Bottom flood . This f lood story and location is also remembered in the 
Med icine Bear Winter Count at the Hood Museum at Darthmouth Col lege ,  Hanover, NH. This 
information is repeated for the same year in the Chand ler-Pohrt Winter Count which is located 
at the Detroit Museum of Arts , Detroit, M l . 
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Pr ince Maximi l ian  von Wied-Neuwied travel led i nto the i nterior of North America dur ing the 
summer of 1 833. Wied-Neuwied has written probably the most about the Cannonba l l  River than 
any prev ious o r  post visitors .  An excerpt is shared here: "On the north s ide of the mouth , there 
was a steep, yel l ow c lay wa l l ;  and on the southern , a flat, covered with poplars and wi l l ows . Th is 
river has its name from the s ingu lar regular sand-stone bal ls which are found in its banks ,  and in 
those of the Missouri in its vicin ity . They are of various sizes , from that of a musket bal l  to that of 
a large bomb, and l ie i rregu larly on the bank, or in the strata, from wh ich they often project to 
ha lf  thei r th ickness when the river has washed away the earth ; they fa l l  down , and are found i n  
g reat n umbers on  the  bank. Many of  them are rather e l l ipt ica l ,  others are more flattened, and 
others flat on one s ide , and rather convex on the other. Of the perfectly spherical ba l ls ,  I 
observed some two feet in diameter. " 

The Long Soldier Winter Count entry for 1 835-36 recorded an Arikara camp on the Cannonba l l  
River. The Hur]kphapha Lakh6ta went to  the Arikara camp to trade for wagmfza (corn) . The 
Arikara , not want ing the Lakh6ta around, perhaps owing to the part the Lakh6ta played in the 
Arikara War of 1 823, k i l led six of the Lakh6ta . 

John  James Audubon visited the Cannonba l l  River on  June 5, 1 943, and wrote of "the very 
remarkable bluffs . "  According to Audubon, the Cannonba l l  River was formerly a good place for 
beaver. He saw l gugaoth i la (Rock Wren) on the bluffs , a pra i rie fi re, and noted that the water 
tasted g ood. 

In September of 1 863, Genera l Alfred Sul ly lead an assau lt on  the Siouan encampment at 
Whitestone Hi l l  as part of the pun itive campaig ns organ ized by Genera l  Pope to make 
Americans feel safe fo l l owing the 1 862 M innesota Dakota Confl ict ,  and to open the frontier for 
sett lement - i n  part icu lar, to open the frontier for veterans return i ng from the Civi l War. Sul ly's 
command k i l led as many as 200 (most ly women and ch i ldren) and took 256 prisoners (most ly 
women and ch i ldren) . Survivors ,  those who escaped, tu rned west and crossed the Missouri 
River at the Cannonba l l  confl uence. 

A second entry on  the Long Soldier Winter Count cites a confl ict at the Cannonba l l  River 
between the Lakh6ta and H6he (Ass in ibo ine) in 1 862-63. Twenty Ass in iboi ne came on the 
warpath ,  there was a battle there, and they hid beh ind the cannonbal l  concret ions.  The ci rcle 
tel ls us that the Ass in iboine were surrounded and fi red upon .  The fox image which overlays the 
Ass in iboi ne tel ls us they fought with gu i le .  

On Ju ly 29, 1 864, after spending two weeks hast i ly construct ing Fort Rice,  General Su l ly took 
h is command of 2200 so ldiers ,  which included a detachment of Winnebago Indian scouts, and 
ascended the Cannonbal l  River on the south bank, h is pun itive campaign  on the lsarJyathi 
Dakh6ta anew. Known or unknown , Su l ly a lso marched against the ThfthurJWarJ Lakh6ta 
(HurJkpapha ,  l tazipcho ,  Sihasapa , and Mnikh6zu) , and l harJkthurJWarJna Dakh6ta , two Siouan 
g roups who had noth ing to do with the 1 862 Minnesota Dakota Confl ict .  Su l ly received a 
dispatch from Fort Rice at midn ight on July 22 that the Dakh6ta were on the Knife River. The 
next day Su l ly 's command crossed the Cannonbal l  River near present-day commun ities of 
Porcupine and Sh ields ,  ND. 

A th i rd entry from the Long Soldier Winter Count indicates that the Hur]kpapha were camped at 
the Cannonba l l  River in  1 866-67 . Ga l l  was taken by soldiers that winter to Fort Berthold where 
they stabbed h im. Ga l l  was left for dead and the camp moved on .  What makes th is tale 
remarkable is that Ga l l  walked to the H ur]kpapha camp at the Cannonbal l  River and recovered. 

4 I P a g e  



SCR 4017 
3 .15 .19 

Attachment _J__ 
In 1 878, the Hur:ikphapha chief, l sta SapA ("Black Eye/s") , met with Wi l l iam Wade, a cattle 
rancher on the Cannonba l l  River, and shared this about the terrible 1 825 flood : " . . .  we camped 
on this bottom land j ust below here . . .  it was the Wolf Month [February] and it had been warm for 
a long t ime. One n ight the water started coming in over the ground from the river and before we 
cou ld  get to higher ground we were surrounded by water and ice chunks . Our on ly chance was 
to get to high ground before we would a l l  be covered up with water. We tried to carry our tepees 
and suppl ies but fi na l ly had to leave them and many of the women were drowned tryi ng to save 
their  chi ld ren .  Most a l l  our  old people drowned and many others . Most a l l  our  horses went under 
and you can sti l l  see their  heads (sku l l s) layi ng [s ic] along at the foot of the h i l l s  after so many, 
many years . Two Bears (Mato Nepa) a Yankton chief [s ic] ,  saved the l ives of severa l  women 
and chi l d ren by carry ing them from camp to the higher ground . "  

Wi l l iam Wade's daughter, Mamie, met her share of pre-reservation Dakh6ta and Lakh6ta 
people. Among them was Ann ie Skye. Skye relayed to the younger Wade that sma l lpox struck 
the Lakh6ta i n  1 837 . They were camped at the mouth of the Cannonbal l  River when "out of a 
clear b lue sky smal lpox hit them. After the death of severa l of their number, who were put to rest 
up on platforms suspended in  trees , they decided to move away from this i nfested loca l ity . "  

Dr .  Harriett Skye, Ann ie Skye's granddaughter, offers a contemporary perspective on current 
events near the Cannonba l l  River: "I bel ieve that as long as they remain  peacefu l and unarmed , 
and each day they are there, is a win .  This k ind of action confuses those who wou ld  come in  
with the i r  guns and armor because their intent is  to ki l l .  They arrested people who were praying, 
but the powers that be know that the world is  watching, but more importantly, know that our 
Ancestors are watching because they fought and d ied so we cou ld  be here .  This struggle is 
everyone's struggle to mainta in our clean water. Water is  l ife . "  Dr .  Skye was inducted i nto the 
North Dakota Heritage Center's Native American Hal l  of Honor i n  September, 201 6. 

Dr. El izabeth Fenn ,  Pu l itzer Prize winn ing author of "Encounters at The Heart of The World :  A 
History of The Mandan People , "  writes that the Huff phase - located between the Cannonbal l  
River and Heart River i n  a time frame from about ci rca 1 300 to  about 1 450 - was when and 
where the Mandan became the Mandan.  They developed the Okipa ceremony in this locat ion 
du ri ng this time. The South Cannonba l l  site was unprotected , that is, there were no pa l isade 
wa l l s ,  nor defensive moats surround ing their v i l lage there. The fortifications at the North 
Cannonba l l  s ite may wel l  represent a key transformation i n  p la ins vi l l age l ife, as d rought caused 
strife i n  the Missouri River va l ley . This may have been cause for the Mandan to move closer 
together - and bu i l d  fortifications - for safety . But we need archaeological study to sort these 
thi ngs out .  

By the t ime Mandans moved north from the Cannonba l l  area to Huff and the Heart River, they 
had embraced the key trait that made them Mandan : the Okipa ceremony, with its mu lti-day 
reenactment of their  own rich history. The Cannonba l l  area , accord ing to Fenn ,  represents "the 
oldest Mandan cu ltu ra l  horizon . "  

The late Vine Deloria Jr. essayed that for many Americans ,  "the fi rst and most fami l iar  ki nd of 
sacred lands are places to which we attribute sanctity because the location is a s ite where , 
with in our  own history ,  something of great importance has taken place .  Unfortunately ,  many of 
these places are related to instances of human violence. Every society needs these kinds of 
sacred places because they help to insti l l  a sense of socia l  cohesion i n  the people and remind 
them of the passage of generations that have brought them to the present . A society that cannot 
remember and honor its past is in peri l of losi ng its sou l .  Ind ians ,  because of our considerably 
longer tenure on this conti nent, have many more sacred places than do non-Ind ians . "  
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"A second category of sacred lands has a deeper, more profound sense of the sacred . It can be 
i l l ustrated i n  . . .  [when] Joshua led the Hebrews across the River Jordan i nto the Holy Land .  After 
cross ing, Joshua  selected one man from each of the Twelve tri bes and told h im  to fi nd a large 
stone. The twelve stones were then placed together i n  a monument to mark the spot where the 
people had camped after having crossed the river successfu l ly .  In the cross ing of the River 
Jordan , the sacred or h igher powers have appeared i n  the l ives of human beings . . .  the essence 
of the event is  that the sacred has become a part of our existence . "  

" It is  not l ikely that non-Ind ians have had many of  these k inds  of  rel igious experiences , 
particu larly because most churches and synagogues have specia l  ritua ls that are designed to 
cleanse the bu i l d i ngs so that their services can be held there untai nted by the natura l world . 
Non-Ind ians  s imply have not been on th is conti nent very long; their fam i l ies have rarely settled 
in one place for any period of t ime so that no profound relationsh ip with the environment has 
been poss ib le . "  

Delor ia conc luded : 'The th ird ki nd of sacred lands  are places of overwhelm ing hol i ness where 
the Higher Powers , on their own in itiative, have revea led Themselves to human beings . We can 
i l l ustrate th is  point in the Old Testament narrative.  Moses spent time herd ing sheep on Mount 
Horeb .  O ne day to h i s  amazement [he] saw a bush burn i ng with fire but not being consumed by 
it. Approach i ng th is  spot , Moses was startled when the Lord spoke to h im .  'Put off thy shoes , for 
the place where thou standest is holy ground . '  Th is trad it ion tel l s  us that there are places of 
unq uestionable ,  i nherent sacredness on th is earth , sites that are holy in  and of themselves . 
These holy places are locations where people have a lways gone to commun icate and commune 
with h igher powers . "  

Dr. Ray Wood , renowned expert in  P la ins Ind ian cu ltura l a n d  archaeologica l  s ites o n  the Upper 
Missouri River and whose first-hand field experience goes back before the dams of the 1 950s, 
i nterprets the data from John Evans 1 796 map i n  regard to the Cannonbal l  River local ity that 
what Evans  recorded as "Jupiter's Fort" is without a doubt a prehistoric Mandan v i l l age. 
Accord i ng to Wood 's fi nd i ngs regard ing the North Cannonbal l  s ite , "Not on ly was it a defensive 
sett ing, but the v i l l age was also fortified by a curving d itch that isolated a level upland spur from 
the adjoin i ng upland .  The vi l l age today is badly d isturbed by plowing, but from the air one can 
clearly see the fortification d itch and the numerous bastions protrud ing from it . L ittle wonder that 
Evans referred to it as a fort . . .  " In h is  "Prologue To Lewis & C lark: The Mackay And Evans 
Exped itions , "  Dr. Wood essays the number of remarkable Ind ian v i l lage sites north of the 
Cannonba l l  River. Remarkable. Extraord inary . Outstand ing. Sign ificant. 

The ND SHPO conducted a fol low-up survey west of HWY 1 806 and found that no s ign ificant 
s ites were destroyed . The phys ical evidence,  or lack thereof, cannot be d isputed . Accord ing to 
the ch ief archaeologist's pub l ished note , he and h is associates were looki ng west of HWY 1 806, 
perhaps because Mr. Tim Mentz conducted his own survey and cal led attention there with h is  
fi nd i ngs . The North Cannonba l l  s ite , and the mouth of  the Cannonbal l  River, the confl uence of 
h istory and  cu lture , i s  east of HWY 1 806. 

In 1 999, the Cannonbal l  Ranch was inducted i nto the North Dakota Cowboy Ha l l  of Fame. It's 
one of the o ldest ranches in  North Dakota . Accord ing the ND Cowboy of Fame, the ranch 
served as a gathering point as early as 1 865. The ranch i nc luded a hotel , a general store, a 
ferry cross ing, a steamboat land ing and fue l ing station ,  a m i l itary telegraph station for Fort Rice, 
and a stage l i ne to the Black Hi l l s  i n  the 1 870's and 1 880s .  The ranch a lso inc l uded two houses , 
a barn , a b lacksm ith shop, a bunk-house, an ice house, a laundry , and tenn is  court .  
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The North Dakota Cowboy Ha l l  of Fame's strict criteria for el igib i l ity to be recogn ized is  that a 
ranch must have been " i nstrumenta l i n  creating or developing the ranch ing business ,  trad itions ,  
and  l ifestyles of North Dakota 's western heritage and  l ivestock industry . "  

In 2010, Walmart p lanned to construct a supercenter near Wi lderness Battlefield (a Civ i l War 
battle ground) and people invested in the history of that s ite grew concerned . Eventua l ly ,  
enough people held that ground as sacred and h istorica l that plans for the supercenter were 
d ropped i n  January 2011. Coincidenta l ly ,  Walmart and state offic ia ls had argued that noth ing 
s ign ificant occurred on that s ite. 

The sum of the north bank of the Cannonba l l  River with a mi l l ion years of geologica l h istory, 700 
years of conti n ua l  occupation , i nter-tribal confl ict ,  smal lpox, botany, trade, steamboat traffic, US 
mi l itary h istory , and early ranch ing, have made that location s ign ificant. 

Spi ritua l  p i lgrimages were conducted on the plateaus of the " Hummit . "  There wou ld  be l itt le to 
no traces of these vis ion q uests , and there shou ldn 't be. People went to pray , not leave 
evidence .  In September of 2016, the Presid i ng Bishop of the Episcopal Church , Rt . Rev. Curry , 
made a pi lgrimage of h i s  own to the Cannonba l l .  He l istened and prayed with the commun ity 
there.  C urry 's  v is i t  ca l l s  to mind Psalm 99: 9 ,  "Exalt the Lord our God , and worsh ip at h is  holy 
h i l l ;  for the Lord our  God is Holy . "  The mystery of creation can be seen there today as the early 
peoples beheld it. 

The Cannonbal l  River, and specifica l ly the North Cannonba l l  s ite, and its importance to the fi rst 
nations ,  to North Dakota , must take i nto account its rel igious or spi ritua l  s ign ificance, its role i n  
i nter-triba l confl icts , its role in  the 1837 smal lpox epidemic which struck the Hur]kpapha ,  its role 
as the start ing poi nt in Gen . Su l ly 's 1864 pun itive campaign , and the h istoric Cannonbal l  Ranch . 

The Cannonba l l  River, and a l l  its attributes is  important to a l l  North Dakota citizens ,  to new 
citizens ,  and most importantly of a l l ,  the future. Let us put our minds together, to educate 
ourselves and one another about the thi ngs we hold dear, to resolve to respect our story, our 
h istories , and our s ites of s ign ificance. 
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Test imony 
SCR 4017 Heari ng  o n  Ma rch lS, 2019 

Energy a nd Natu ra l Resources Com mittee 
Fern Swenson, D i recto r of Archaeo logy a nd H istoric P reservatio n, 

State H i sto rica l Society of No rth Da kota 

Good morn i ng, Cha i rman  Porter and  members of the com mittee .  My name is  Fern Swenson and  am 
D i recto r of the Archaeo logy & H istoric P rese rvat ion D iv is ion at t he  State H i storica l  Society o f  North 
Da kota (SHSN D ) .  I am he re th is  morn ing to p rovide  i nformat ion rega rd ing the many ed ucationa l  
a ct iv it ies a nd  p roducts we have p rod uced or  provide  i n  coo rd i nat ion with the Tribes of  No rth  Da kota . 
w i l l  a l so p rese nt i nfo rmat ion about the State H isto ric P rese rvat ion Office (SH PO) fu nct ion  a nd processes, 
as we l l  as the se rvices a n d  assista nce we provide  the Tri ba l H i stor ic P rese rvat ion Offices (TH PO) in North 
Da kota . 

F i rst, we work ve ry c lose ly with Scott Davis, I n d i a n  Affa i rs Commiss ion Execut ive D i recto r o n  n umerous 
p rojects . We tru ly  a ppreciate h i s  gu ida nce, d ia logue, and  fri endsh ip  ove r m a ny yea rs of working 
together. Scott coo rd i nates nom inat ions, se lect io ns, a nd exh ib its fo r the Nat ive America n H a l l  of 
Honors a t  the He ritage Center . 

We have a c lose, l ong-sta nd ing work ing re lat ionsh i p  with the M a ndan, H id atsa and Ari ka ra Nation 
( M HAN) .  In coo rd i nat ion  with M HAN we prod uced the documenta ry The People of the Upper Missouri: 
The Mandans. The fi l m  beg ins with a contempora ry port ra it of the Ma nda n, H idatsa, a nd  Ari kara peop le 
and trave ls backwa rds  th rough space and  t ime to AD 1200 at  the confl uence of the Hea rt a nd M isso uri 
rivers .  The documenta ry i ntegrates h isto rica l imagery, co ntem pora ry interviews with e n ro l led members 
of M HAN a nd i nterv iews with h i stori ans  and a rchaeo logists interested i n  unde rsta nd i ng the i r  h isto ry. 

We ma nage seve ra l l a rge earth lodge vi l l ages that  were once occup ied by the Mandan, H idatsa, and  
Ari ka ra .  You may reca l l  t he  sta b i l izat ion effo rt t ha t  was  unde rtaken ove r the l a st seve ra l yea rs a t  Doub le 
D itch State H i sto ric S i te .  It was critica l to sta b i l i ze the site as  e ros ion was act ively destroy ing the site . 
The p roject ha s  been completed except for some m inor  re-p l a nti ngs a nd wa l ki ng path repa i rs .  The a rea 
of the sta b i l i zat io n was eng ineered i n  a manne r  that wou l d  m i n im ize d istu rba nce to the site as much as 
poss i b l e .  M HAN was i nvolved at every step of th i s  p roject from p l a nn i ng, eng ineeri ng, construct ion, 
t h ro ugh  the  re bu ri a l .  Du ri ng that  project 198 human  bu ri a l s  were recove red and re i nte rred near  the 
s i te  o n  state p rope rty i n  coo rd i n at ion with the M HAN Tri ba l  H isto ric P reservat ion Office and the 
M a nd a n  comm u n ity of Twin Buttes .  We s incere ly  app reciate you r  leg is l ative support of the project. 
This d iffi cu lt p roject su re ly represents the co l l aborat ive and respectfu l coo rd i nat io n between the state, 
SHS N D, a nd M HAN .  

L ikewise, d u r ing t he  expa ns ion of t h e  Heritage Center, a Nat ive Ame rica n adviso ry group  with 
re p rese ntat ives from each Tri ba l  Nat ion prov ided m uch info rmat ion a nd  coord i nat ion rega rd ing the 
I n novat io n and I nsp i rat ion ga l l e ries on  numerous  top ics .  Ea rly on  A lyce Spotted Bea r  offe red the 
impo rta n ce of hea r ing each of the Nat ive l a nguages in  the ga l l e ry .  Th is  is perhaps one  of the most 
s ign ific an t  aspects of the ga l l e ries - to not o n ly hea r  pe rsona l  stor ies but a l so the l a nguages spoken .  
Recent ly t h e  SHSN D pub l ished Traces: Early Peoples of North Dakota t h a t  expa nds u pon  these exh ib its 
p resent ing  a rchaeo logica l d i scove ries a longs ide other  cu lt u ra l  i nfo rmat io n .  The book is written fo r 
stude nts, teachers, a nd readers who want to know more a bout the r ich he ritage of the ear l i est res ide nts 
of N o rt h  Da kota . 
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Staff at the  SHSN D have cond ucted o ra l  i nterviews with numerous  tr iba l mem bers .  Most recent ly we 
have conducted i nterviews with e l ders from Sp i rit La ke a nd  M HAN .  These were at the req uest of the 
e l de rs at  M HAN and Tri ba l H isto ric P reservation Office at  Sp i rit La ke . Record ing  i nd ivi d ua l  a nd  
tra d it io n a l  sto r ies i s  ext reme ly im porta nt a nd i s  rewa rd i ng and  a n  honor  to  be i nvo lved i n  th i s  
co l l a borat ion  p rocess .  

The two s ites ment ioned by Ca lvi n G ri nne l l  at the Senate hea ring named G ra n d mother' s  Lodge I I  and the 
long l i nea r fea tu re were reco rded and m a p ped by two resea rch a rchaeo log ists from the SHSN D at the 
req uest of Ca lvi n .  P ape rs at profess io n a l  conferences were then  co-a utho red by the research  
a rchaeo log ists and  Ca lvi n .  Archaeo logists a nd TH PO offices rout ine ly do  work  together  and  prese nt 
com p l imenta ry i nfo rmat ion from tri ba l  and archaeo logica l perspectives. I t  does not have to be one o r  
t h e  other  b ut i t  i s  o r  ca n be both perspect ives effective ly com b ined .  I t  i s  certa i n ly a bout  o p e n  d ia logue .  
The a rchaeo log ists at  the SHSN D vis it s ites wheneve r the request is made  by t r iba l  mem bers and  they 
have a lways been wi l l i ng to ta ke t ime to prod uce maps o r  look u p  i nformat ion for the i r  req uests. 

Next, we have unde rta ke n  Nat iona l  Register nom inat ions at  the req uest of e l de rs and  en ro l led members 
at M HAN .  Most recent ly was the req uest to have the I ndependence Congregat iona l  Chu rch and  
cemete ry l i sted i n  t he  N ationa l  Register o f  H istor ic P laces .  Fo l lowing the l isti ng was  a n  a rt ic le i n  North 
Dakota History that  d i scussed the s ign ifica nce of th i s  p roperty from M HAN e l de rs' perspective and  it 
was m uch a pprec iate d .  We we re ve ry p leased to hea r  that  comment and  pub l ish the a rt ic le for w ider  
d i str i but ion .  The re a re two other  projects that  a re i n  the wo rks based on  more recent tri b a l  requests. 

As ment ioned ea r l i e r, we work c lose ly with Scott Davis a n d  the No rth  Da kota l ntertr i ba l Re i nternment 
Com m ittee .  Th i s  com m ittee typ ica l ly is represented by i n d iv id ua l s  from the Tri ba l  H isto ric P rese rvat ion 
Offices .  The SHSN D is  tasked under  the centu ry code ( N DCC 23-06-27 a nd N DAC 40-02-03) to dea l w i th  
u n m a rked bu ri a l  s i tes  o n  private and  state p roperty. We have worked with  n umerous p rivate property 
owners rega rd i ng  h u m a n  bur ia l  issues over the l a st th ree  decades .  

Now, rega rd ing  the  ro le  of the State H i storic P rese rvatio n  Office . The office is req u i red to have 
expe rt ise i n  a rchaeo logy ( p reh i sto ric and  histor ic) ,  h isto ry, a nd a rch itect u ra l  h i story that  meet the 
Secreta ry of I nteri o r  Sta ndards fo r these d isc i p l i nes .  The major p rogram a reas  of the S H PO a re Review 
a nd  Com p l i a nce (Sect ion 106), N atio na l  Registe r, P reservat ion Tax I ncentives, Su rvey and i nvento ry, 
p l a n n i ng, loca l gove rnment cert ificat ion, gra nts, a nd  techn i ca l  a ss ista nce .  M uch staff time is spent  on  
the  Review and  Com p l i a nce ro le ,  not on ly i n  p rovid i ng recommendat ions a n d  com ments bu t  a l so 
ma nag ing the suppo rt documentat ion for p rojects .  The S H PO office is the so l e  repos itory fo r the state 
fo r t hese reco rds .  Cu rrently we have app rox imate ly 70,000 sites ( a rch itect u ra l  and a rchaeo logica l )  
reco rded i n  No rt h  Da kota with app roximately 8 %  o f  the state be ing su rveyed .  The re a re 18,000 cu lt u ra l  
resou rce reports documenting i nvestigations .  Locationa l  i nfo rmation  i s  ma i nta ined i n  a Geograph i c  
I nfo rmat ion System (G IS) and t he  fo rms and  reports a re l i n ked  to  the G IS .  The  mu lt i p l e  s ite types 
( a rc h itect u ra l , h i stor ic, preh isto r ic a rchaeo log ica l )  a re in l aye rs with i n  th i s  system .  In 2013,  at the 
req uest of the TH POs we deve loped a cu l tura l  he ritage fo rm that  wou l d  ta ke i nto cons iderat ion 
locat ions of cu l t u ra l  and ceremon i a l  impo rtance to tr ibes that a re potentia l  Trad it i ona l  Cu l tura l  
P rope rt ies o r  othe r  locat ions that m ight not b e  recogn ized b y  a n  a rchaeo logist .  That form was revised 
based on  com m e nts received and is now used on  a regu l a r  basis .  We have ove r 600 of these locat ions in 
the system a nd  re p resent one more layer  of d ata i n  the G IS system .  M a ny of these locat ions a re o n  
p rivate p roperty a n d  associated with surveys underta ke n  fo r wind fa rms o r  other  ene rgy deve lopment  
p rojects .  
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I n  ma nag ing  these site fo rms and cu l tura l  resource reports, we frequently ass ist the THPO offices i n  
matte rs such as  condu ct i ng fi le sea rches .  J ust rece ntly we provided Dr .  E rich Longie w i th  a l l  o f  the fi les 
( s ites, re ports, and G IS layers) fo r Sp i rit La ke. We do  th is  to cooperate fo r a common  goa l and out of 
m utua l respect . I s hou l d  mention here that the TH PO is respons ib le  fo r p rov id ing comments on a l l  
reservat io ns, the SHPO  does not have a ro le on  t ri b a l  l ands .  W e  on ly assist when the TH POs have 
req uested info rmat ion ,  ass ista nce or ou r  op in io n .  

I n  sum ,  the SHSND  ha s  a nd w i l l  conti nue  t o  work c lose ly with the Tri bes :  t h rough progra m ming, 
exh ib its, co l lect ions, a n d  i nterpretive s igns at the He ritage Cente r and  State H isto r ic Sites to the 
regu l a tory fu nct ions  of the agency and SHPO office . 
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Sect ion 106 Review Process - a Federa l  Agency is the lead and makes the fina l  

decis ion 

PROJ ECT DETAI LS 

I N ITIATE Sect ion 106 Process 
Determine if an actio n is an undertak ing 
Coord inate with othe r  reviews 
I dentify a ppropriate SHPO/TH PO 
P l a n  to i nvolve the pub l ic 
I dentify other consu lt ing pa rt ies 

U N D E RTAKING  M I G HT AFFECT H ISTOR IC  PRO P E RTI ES 

I D ENTI FY h i stor ic p ropert ies 

Dete rm ine scope of project ( a rea of potent i a l  effect) 

Review exist ing fi les/reports fo r p revious  i nvestigat ions 

Cond uct cu l tura l  resources s u rveys as  necessa ry to ident ify s ites 

M a ke a reasonab le  and good fa ith effo rt to i dentify s ites 

Eva l uate h i stor ic s ign ifica nce 

Consu lt SHPO/TH PO, I nd i a n  tr ibes, a nd  other  pa rt ies 

I nvo lve the pub l i c  

H ISTOR IC  PROPERT IES  ARE  AFFECTED 

ASSESS adve rse effects 
App ly  Crite ria of Adverse Effects 
Consu lt SHPO/TH PO, I nd i an  tr i bes, a nd  other pa rt ies 
I nvo lve the pub l ic 

H ISTOR IC  PROPERTI ES ARE  ADVERSELY AFFECTED  

RESOLVE a dve rse effects 
Deve lop a nd  cons ider a lternatives or mod ificat ions  to avoid ,  
m i n im ize, o r  m itigate adverse effects 
Notify the Advisory Counc i l  on H isto ric P reservat ion 
Consu l t  SHPO/TH PO, I n d i a n  tr i bes, a nd  other pa rt ies 
I nvolve the pub l ic 

P ROCE E D  

TH PO - Trib a l  H istor ic Preservat ion Office - each o f  the reservat io ns i n  N o rt h  Da kota have a Tri ba l 
H isto ri c  P reservat io n Officer 
SH PO - State H isto r ic Preservat ion Office 
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19.3139.01001 
Tit le. 

Prepared by the Legislat ive Counci l  staff for 
Representative Porter 

March 26, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 4017 

Page 1, l ine 2, remove "dichotomy between the" 

Page 1, l ine 2, replace "on" with a comma 

Page 1, l ine 2, after "resources" insert a comma 

Page 1, l ine 5, remove "and registration" 

Page 1, l ine 14, after "regional" insert "and" 

Page 1, l ine 14, after "private" insert "industry" 

Page 1, l ine 18, remove "eligib i l ity of' 

Page 1 , remove l ine 19 

Page 1, l ine 20, remove "to the National Register of Historic Places" 

Page 1, l ine 21, remove "state agencies, including the Department of Transportation, " 

Page 1, l ine 22, replace ", the State Historic Preservation Office, and the Public Service 
Commission, should" with "shall" 

Page 1, l ine 23, after "coordinate" insert "with state agencies including the Department of 
Transportation, State Historical Society, and Publ ic Service Commission, to coordinate" 

Page 2, l ine 3, remove "dichotomy between the" 

Page 2, l ine 4, replace "on" with a comma 

Page 2, l ine 4,  after "resources" insert a comma 

Page 2, l ine 7, remove "and registration" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.3139.01001 



1 9 . 3 1 39.01 002 
Tit le. 

SCR 4017 
Prepared by the Leg is lative Counci l  staff for 4.s.19 

Representative Porter Attachment 1 

March 28, 201 9 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 40 1 7  

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 ,  replace "directing" with "urg ing" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 ,  replace "Leg islat ive Management" with " I nd ian Affai rs Commission" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 ,  replace "consider studying" with "study" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 ,  remove "dichotomy between the" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 ,  replace "on" with a comma 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 ,  after " resources" insert a comma 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4, remove the semicolon 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4 ,  replace "the faci l itation of" with "to faci l i tate" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 5, remove "and reg istration" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 4, after "reg ional" i nsert "and" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 4 , after "private" insert " industry" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 8 , remove "el ig ib i l ity of" 

Page 1 ,  remove l ine 1 9  

Page 1 ,  l i ne 20, remove "to the National Reg ister of H istoric P laces" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 1 , remove "state agencies, i nclud ing the Department of Transportation , "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 22 ,  remove " ,  the State H istoric Preservation Office , and the Publ ic Service 
Commission ,  should" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 23,  replace "coord inate and consu lt" with " is urged to consider coord inating with 
state agencies includ ing the Department of Transportat ion ,  State Historical Society, and 
Publ ic Service Commission and to consu lt" 

Page 2, l ine 3, replace "Leg islative Management" with " I ndian Affai rs Commission is urged to" 

Page 2, l i ne 3, remove "d ichotomy between the" 

Page 2, l ine 4 ,  replace "on" with a comma 

Page 2 ,  l ine 4, after "resources" insert a comma 

Page 2,  l i ne 6 ,  remove the semicolon 

Page 2 ,  l ine 6 ,  replace "the faci l itation of" with "to faci l itate" 

Page 2, l ine 7, remove "and registration" 

Page 2,  l i ne 8 ,  after "that" insert "if stud ied , "  

Page 2 ,  l i ne 8, replace "Leg islative Management" with " I ndian Affairs Commission is urged to" 

Renumber accord ing ly 
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